BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSIONERS
KANSAS CITY, MISSOURI
12:30 ’CLOCK P.M.
WORKSHOP

Tuesday, April 25, 2017
4600 East 63rd Street Trafficway

1:15p.m. — Washington Square Park Update by Jimmi Lossing and Doug Stockman

2:00 O°’CLOCK P.M.
REGULAR MEETING

. Considering Board approval of the Minutes of April 11, 2017.

. Considering Board approval of an Agreement with Knuckleheads, Inc. for Bluegrass in the
Bottorns on May 19 and 20, 2017 in Heim Park, Linda Mock will be attending Board Meeting.

. Considering Board approval of an Agreement with the Humane Society of Greater Kansas City for
Dog-N-Jog 2017 on June 11, 2017, between J.C. Nichols Parkway and Pennsylvania. Kathi
Nichols will be attending Board Meeting.

. Considering Board approval of an Agreement with the Heart of America Council, Boy Scouts of
America for the 2017 High Trail Day Camp on June 30, 2017 in Jerry Smith Farm Park, Jesse
Miller will be attending Board Meeting.

. Considering Board approval of Amendment #1 with Bridging the amp Heartland Tree Alliance in
the amount of $300,000 and extend the contract time to June 30, 2019.

. Considering Board approval of Amendment #3 to extend with Kansas City Organics and Natural
Market to April 30, 2018 to continue the sell of organically grown and/or produced items in Minor
Park.

. Considering Board approval of Amendment #1 with Sage for Marketing Strategy, Creative
Development, Plan Implementation and Management in the amount of $125,000 and extend the
contract time to April 30, 2018.

. Considering Board approval of Amendment #3 with Midwest Pool Management for the
management of the Junior Pools in the amount of $540,237 and extend the contract term to April
30, 2018.

. Considering Board approval of Amendment #5 with Midwest Pool Management for The Bay
Aquatic Center in the amount of $591,485 and extend the contract time to April 30, 2019,

10. Considering Board approval of Amendment #6 with Midwest Pool Management for the Springs

Aquatic Center in in the amount of $598,661 and extend the contract term to April 30, 2018.

11, Considering Board approval of the Kansas City Museum’s Visitor Experience Plan produced by

Gallagher & Associates.



Page 2 of 2
Board Agenda
April 25, 2017

12. Considering Board approval of Amendment #1 with International Architects Atelier for Phase
Three Design Development and Construction Documents of the Kansas City Museum Historic
Restoration and Renovation Project in the amount of $189,000.

13. Considering Board approval of Amendment #1 with J.E, Dunn Construction Co. for Phase II, Pre-
Construction Services for the Kansas City Museum Historic Restoration and Renovation Project in

the amount of $185,000.

14, Considering Board approval of a Bid Award to Gunter Construction for the Brush Creek
Confluence Trail in the amount of $1,019,470.00.

15. Considering Board approval of an Amendment #7 with Taliaferro & Browne for the Shoal Creek
Parkway Design project to extend the contract time to March 185, 2018.

16. Considering Board approval of Change Order #1 with Mega Industries for the Trailside Center
Parking Lot Expansion in the amount of $3,646.22 and extend the contract time to July 21, 2017.

17. Director’s Report:
a. Major Construction Report
b. Marketing Report

18. PUBLIC HEARING
19. CALENDAR REVIEW
20. ADJOURNMENT

“The Board may hold a closed session during the workshop or the meeting to discuss legal, real estate
or personnel issues pursuant to R.S.Mo. Section 610.021.”
The Board may hold a closed session during the workshop or the meeting to discuss:

o Legal matters, litigation, or privileged communications with attoreys, pursuant to Section

§610.021(1), RSMo

o Real estate, pursuant to Sec. 610.021(2), RSMo

e Personnel, pursuant to §610.021(3) / (13); RSMo

e Sealed Bids or proposals, pursuant to Section §610.021 (12), RSMo
The Board may return to the conference room following the regular meeting for ad-+ditional discussion
of items on the agenda of the Board’s Workshop that were not completed prior to the regular meeting,
“Any person with disability desiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting may
contact the 311 Action Center at 311 or (816) 513-1313 for TTY 513-1889 or by email,”



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date:  April 25, 2017

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: Travis W. Kiefer, P.E., Asst. Dir. — Engineering, Planning, & Design Division
Subject: Washington Square Park Project Update— Pre-Board Presentation

B und

Jimmi Lossing and Doug Stockman will give the Board an update on the Washington
Square Park Project.



Official Record of the Procecdings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Mesting of April 11, 2017 - Page - 1

12:30 0°'CLOCK P. M.
Tuesday, April 11, 2017
4600 E. 63" STREET TRAFFICWAY

Board Members present: Jean Paul Chaurand, Shannon Cade, Allen Dillingham and Mary Jane
Judy and David Mecklenburg

The Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners met in Workshop Session.

Workshop
1:15p.m. —Parks and Recreation Signage Discussion

Commissioner Chaurand called the Meeting to Order:

Approval of the Minutes:

On a motion by Commissioner Judy, duly seconded the Board approved the Minutes from the
meeting of March 28, 2017.

Resolution #30810 — Agreement with the Kansas City Rose Society

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Agreement
with the American Rose Society and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: The American Rose Society wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession
Agreement for the use of the Laura Conyers Smith Municipal Rose Garden, located in Loose
Park, to hold the 7™ Annual Wine and Roses on Thursday, September 21, 2017. This event will
help the Kansas City Rose Society fund additional rosebushes, garden maintenance, and the
continuation of free community programs and events throughout the year.

Wine and Roses hopes to bring about awareness to the Laura Conyers Smith Municipal Rose
Garden, its relationship with the Kansas City Rose Society and to increase the society’s
membership. The event will feature music, wine and food. Wine and Roses will run from 5:00
pm to 7:00 pm and coordinators hope for 150 or more attendees.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Listing of items for sale

A plan for traffic and parking control

Marketing plan

Certificate of insurance per city requirements

Safety and security plan

Map of event layout

Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

N hwn e



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Packs and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Mseting of April 11, 2017 —Page - 2

lution 11 - t with the Roanoke Park Consery: - d

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Agreement
with Roanoke Park Conservancy and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: On November 21, 2016, the Roanoke Park Conservancy (RPC) presented plans to
the Development Review Committee to design, construct and maintain a custom shade structure
to be located at the new Karnes Playground at Karnes Boulevard and Madison Avenue.

The new playground has been very popular among children and parents and one priority that has
been identified since it’s opening in April 2016, is the lack of shade. Through a design
competition with Hufft Projects, the design selected by the RPC was submitted by local artist and
fabricator, Burgess Zbryk.

The RPC shall be responsible for all volunteer labor, tools, and materials necessary for the
construction of the shade structure. Following completion of construction, the RPC shall be
responsible for the maintenance and repairs as needed.

The initial term of the agreement is for 5 years from the effective date, and may be renewed
thereafter by mutual agreement of the parties.

On a motion by Commissioner Cade duly seconded the Board approved Amendment #4 with
Kansas City United Tennis LLC to manage the Plaza Tennis Center, from May 1, 2017 to April
30, 2018, to pay $1,470.00 monthly for rent and $30.00 per month and authorized the Director or
his designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.

Background: On May 15, 2014 the Parks and Recreation Department entered into a
Professional Services Contract with Kansas City United Tennis to operate the Plaza Tennis
Center. The Director was authorized to enter into an amendment to extend the term of this
Contract and time of performance for this Contract for up to five years. This amendment #4
exercises the option to extend the existing contract for year four. The term of this amendment
will begin on May 1, 2017 and end on April 30, 2018. Kansas City United Tennis will pay
$1,470.00 monthly for rent.

Kansas City United Tennis will retain all revenues and be responsible for all expenses. The
KCMO Parks and Recreation Department will provide trash services for a fee of $30.00/month
during the months this service is required, along with approved maintenance of the building and
structures. Kansas City United Tennis will maintain the landscaping of the exterior and interior
grounds of the facility. Kansas City United Tennis will also assume responsibility for the
telephone lines used at the facility.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of April 11, 2017 - Page - 3

Staff recommends Board approval of amendment #4 with Kansas City United Tennis LLC to
manage the Plaza Tennis Center, from May 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018, to pay $1,470.00 monthly
for rent and $30.00 per month for the months they require trash collection

Resolution #30813 — Amendment #1 with STRATA Architecture & Preservation — 2016

Ci de Fo Monument Rengvation

On a motion by Commissioner Dillingham, duly seconded the Board approved Amendment #1
with STRATA Architecture & Preservation in the amount of $115,752, extended the contract
completion date to October 1, 2017 and authorized the Director for the Director or his designee
to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.

Background:  On September 12, 2016, the City entered into a contract with STRATA
Architecture & Preservation, in the amount of $102,205, to perform diagnostic services for the
Spirit of Freedom Fountain and for the pergola on The Paseo. The scope included an assessment
of the condition of each structure and site; a determination of what repairs or renovations are
required; establishment of priorities for the repairs; and estimation of the cost of the repairs.

Amendment #1, in the amount of $115,752.00, to prepare the construction documents, perform
bidding and negotiation services, and manage construction administration for the renovation of
the Spirit of Freedom Fountain, would bring the contract total to $217,957.00. It would extend
the contract completion date to October 1, 2017.

The Amendment #1 is funded by PIAC funds, in accounts #3090708093 and #3090708309. The
Human Relations Department has approved the participation goals of 23% MBE and 13% WBE
and the goals will be met or exceeded at the close-out of the project.

Resolution 14 - Order #6 with D & D Construction — Ci de Parks & Right-
of-Way Improvements

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved Change Order
#6 with D & D Custom Construction, in the amount of $105,905.00, extended the contract
completion date to June 30, 2017 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board.

Background: On January 12, 2016 the Board approved a construction contract with D & D
Custom Construction in the amount of $401,292. The scope included parking lot improvements
at the Bruce R. Watkins Cultural Center, stone wall repairs in Kessler Park, and track resurfacing
and restriping at Center High School. A Notice to Proceed was issued on March 28, 2016 with a
project completion date of June 26, 2016.

Change Orders #1, #2, #3, #4 and #5 in the amount of $1,036,565.00 added additional scope and
brought the contract total to $1,437,857.00. It extended the completion date to March 30, 2017,

This Change Order #6, in the amount of $148,765.00 includes repairs to stone walls at Case
Park for $40,800.00, Shawnee Mission & Ward Parkway for $18,500.00, concrete sidewalk



Official Record of the Procsedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Cormrrlssioners Minutes of the Mesting of April 11, 2017 — Pags - 4

repairs at Tiffany Springs & Skyview for $3,100.00, Minor Park Clubhouse Paths Improvements
for $31,605.00, Sheila Kemper Dietrich wall repair for $11,900.00, and Grove Pool sidewalk
replacement for $42,860.00 bringing the contract total to $1,586,622.00. The contract
completion date will be extended to June 30, 2017.

Funding will be available under project numbers 70174927, 70400120, 70400135, 70171306
and in Fund Account numbers 203-707704, 203-707769 and 203-707708.

The MBE/WBE goals set by the Human Relations Department are 15% and 6% respectively.
HRD approved the goals submitted by D & D Custom Construction of 15% and 6%. D & D
Custom Construction is required to meet these goals by the end of the project.

On a motion by Commissioner Dillingham, duly seconded the Board approved the 4F release
letter for MoDOT to perform their I-435 capacity project at the Blue River and authorized the
Director to sign the letter on behalf of the Board.

Background: Blue Trail System has been an expanding system and extends along the Indian
Creek and Blue River from Kansas to Minor Park, This includes a section of the trail under I -
435 near the Blue River where the trail goes under the existing highway bridges. This property
was originally acquired by MoDOT for improvements along the I-435 corridor. KC Parks
entered into a trail-way license agreement with MoDOT for the trail construction under their
bridges.

MoDOT is planning some capacity improvement to their bridges on I-435 over the Blue River
that may affect the use of the Blue River Trail during construction. Their improvement may
reroute, close, provide a protective barrier during construction, or any combination of these
efforts.

MoDOT is using federal funds for their capacity improvement and requires the project to obtain
106 Environmental clearance for the project. When parkland is within a project area, a 4F release
letter is required from the jurisdictional Parks Department. The land in this area is owned by
Jackson County and KC Parks operates and maintains the trail so a 4F letter is required from
both Park Departments.

tion 16 ~ Amendment #1 with Safe Service for Maintenance Services -
Central Region

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved Amendment #1
with Safety Tree Service Company to add $300,000.00, extend the contract time to May 3, 2018
and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Board entered into an agreement with Safety Tree Service LLC on May 3,
2016 to provide tree maintenance Services. The contract addresses tree maintenance pruning and
removals on public properties and right of ways, including citizen’s 311 action center requests.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissionars Minmes of the Meeting of Apeil 11, 2017 - Page - §

This contract also required the contractor to provide storm response services in the amount of
$400,000.00

Amendment #1 will provide for tree maintenance services: tree pruning and removals on public
properties and right of ways, including citizen’s 311 action center requests at the same rates in
the Parks Central Region amount of $300,000.00, bringing the total contract amount to
$700,000.00. It is estimated that this contract will address approximately 1,000 trees in this Park
Region. Funding in the amount of $300,000.00 is available in account #3090-707771.
Amendment #1 will also provide a one-year extension of the contract term to May 3, 2018

The Contractor’s Utilization Plan meets MBE/WBE goals for this contract of 17% MBE and 0%
WBE respectively and will apply to this amendment #1, and any future amendments, to this
contract.

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board épproved Amendment #2
with Safety Tree Service Company to add $500,000, extended the contract time to May 3, 2018
and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.

Background: The Board entered into an agreement with Safety Tree Service LLC on May 3,
2016 to provide tree maintenance Services. The contract addresses tree maintenance pruning and
removals on public properties and right of ways, including citizen’s 311 action center request.
This contract also required the contractor to provide storm response services in the amount of
$300,000.00

Amendment #2 will provide for tree maintenance services: tree maintenance pruning and
removals on public properties and right of ways, including citizen’s 311 action center requests at
the same rates in the Parks South Region amount of 500,000.00, bringing the total contract
amount to $824,070.00, It is estimated that this contract will address approximately 1,500 trees
in this Park Region. Funding in the amount of $500,000.00 is available in account #3090-
707771. Amendment #2 will also provide for a one-year extension of the contract term to May 3,
2018,

The Contractor’s Utilization Plan meets MBE/WBE goals for this contract of 13% MBE and 0%
WBE respectively and will apply to this amendment #2, and any future amendments, to this
contract.

Resolution #30818 - Amendment #1 with Safety Tree Service for Maintenance Services —
North Region

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved Amendment #1
with Safety Tree Service Company to add $200,000.00, extended the contract time to May 3,
2018 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the
Board.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Mintes of the Meeting of Apeil 11, 2017 - Pags - 6

Background: The Board entered into an agreement with Safety Tree Service LLC on May 3,
2016 to provide tree maintenance Services. The contract addresses tree maintenance pruning and
removals on public properties and right of ways, including citizen’s 311 action center request.
This contract also required the contractor to provide storm response services in the amount of
$300,000.00

Amendment #1 will provide for tree maintenance services: tree pruning and removals on public
properties and right of ways, including citizen’s 311 action center request at the same rates in the
Parks North Region amount of 200,000.00, bringing the total contract amount to $500,000.00. .
It is estimated that this contract will address approximately 700 trees in this Park Region.
Funding in the amount of $200,000.00 is available in account #3090-707771. Amendment #1
will also provide for a one-year extension of the contract term to May 3, 2018.

The Contractor’s Utilization Plan meets MBE/WBE goals for this contract of 13% MBE and 0%
WBE respectively and will apply to this amendment #1, and any future amendments, to this
contract.

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with Guadalupe Centers, Inc. for Mayor’s Night Kicks in the amount of $40,354 from May 1,
2017 through September 30, 2017and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the
contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a request for proposals was released requesting
organizations and agencies to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement
the Sports and Education Program of Mayor’s Night Kicks program. Two (2) proposals were
submitted for the Night Kicks program. Guadalupe Centers Inc. submitted the sole proposal to
provide programming at 9 & Van Brunt Athletic Complex.

The Guadalupe Centers Inc. will be responsible for %‘oviding trained officials, security detail,
educational programs and scheduling of all games at the 9™ and Van Brunt Athletic Fields. This eight
(8) week program is expected to serve 300 middle and high school participants along with families
each week and will conclude with a closing tournament and recognition ceremony. The contract
amount of $40,354 will cover the cost of educators, officials, a trainer, security, supplies and other
related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 and end on September 30, 2017. The program will
run from June 6™ through August 30%, Funds are available in account 2030-702522.

Resolution #30820 — Contract with Mattie Rhodes Center for the 2017 Mayor’s Night
Kicks

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with Mattie Rhodes Center for Mayor’s Night Kicks from May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017,



ommnmmmmmmmnmwmmmmmmmmﬂnMMmammmomm11.2017-Pnge-1

in the amount of $10,500 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the Contract on
behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a request for proposals was released requesting
organizations and agencies to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement
the Sports and Education Program of Mayor’s Night Kicks program. Two (2) proposals were
submitted for the Night Kicks program. Mattie Rhodes Center submitted the sole proposal to
operate at Budd Park located at St. Johns Ave. Kansas City, Mo. 64124,

Mattie Rhodes Center will be responsible for providing trained officials, security detail,
educational programs and scheduling of all games at Budd Park. This eight (8) week program is
expected to serve more than 100 elementary school participants along with families each week
and will conclude with a closing tournament and recognition ceremony. The contract amount of
$10,500 will cover the cost of educators, officials, a trainer, supplies and other related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 and end on September 30, 2017. The program
will run from June 6™ through August 30®. Funds are available in account 2030-702522.

Ri on — Contract with K.C, H C for 17 Mavor’s Ni

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with K.C. Hoops LLC in the amount of $44,350 from May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017, and
authorized the Director or his designee to execute the Contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)
proposais. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote, KC Hoops
LLC submitted the sole proposal to provide programming at the Gregg-Klice Community Center
located at 1600 John “Buck” O’Neil Way, Kansas City, Mo 64108 and The Bay Water Park
located at 7101 Longview Rd, Kansas City, Mo 64134,

KC Hoops LLC will be responsible for providing the overall program, marketing, and site
management at the site. The programs provided by KC Hoops LLC will include dancing,
athletic activities, board games, swim parties and healthy eating seminars. The ages targeted for
this site are middle school. The hours of operation are from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm on Saturday
nights. This 13 week program is expected to serve more than 120 youth per night. The contract
amount of $44,350 will cover the cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other related
expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. Programming will
run from May 29" through August 11%. Funds are available in account 2030-702091,



Official Recard of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commisaieners Minutes of the Meeting of April 11, 2017 - Page - 8

Resolution #30822 — Contract with Atkins for the 2017 Mayor’s Nights/Club KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with Atkins LLC for the 2017 Mayor's Nights/Club KC at Brush Creek Community Center from
May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017 in the amount of $59,000 and authorized the Director
or his designee to execute the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)
proposals. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote. The Atkins
Group LLC submitted a proposal to hold events at Brush Creek Community Center, located at
3801 Emanuel Cleaver II Blvd, Kansas City, Mo 64130 and at Smith Hale Middle School
located at 8925 Longview Rd, Kansas City, Mo 64134,

The Atkins Group LLC will be responsible for providing the overall program, marketing, and
site management at the sites. The programs provided by The Atkins Group LLC will include
guest speakers, dance parties, and live entertainment. The ages targeted for these sites are middle
school and high school. The hours of operation are from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm for middle school
on Saturday night, and 7:00 pm to 12:00 am for high school on Friday nights. This 13 week
program is expected to serve more than 150 youth per night. The contract amount of $59,000
will cover the cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. The program will
run from May 29" through August 11%, Funds are available in account 2030-702091.

lntion #3 = Contract with Kansas City Public Libr: for the 2017 Mayor’s
Nights/Club KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with the Kansas City Urban Public Library for the 2017 Mayor’s Nights/ Club KC in the amount
of $19,200 from May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017 and authorized the Director or his designee
to execute the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)
proposals. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote, Kansas
City Urban Public Library submitted a proposal to hold events at the Plaza Branch of KCPL,
located at 4801 Mzin Street, Kansas City, Mo 64112, and select other library branches.

Kansas City Urban Public Library will be responsible for providing the overall program,
marketing, and site management at the sites. The programs provided by Kansas City Urban
Public Library will include digital media instruction, summer reading programs, and youth



Official Recard of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutes of the Meeting of April 11, 2017 —Page - 9

empowerment summits. The ages targeted for these sites are middle school and high school. The
hours of operation are from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm on Friday and Saturday nights. This 6 week
program is expected to serve more than 100 youth per night. The contract amount of $19,200
will cover the cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. The program will
run from May 29™ — August 11%. Funds are available in account 2030-702091.

Resolution = Contract with Guadalupe Centers Inc. for the 2017 Mavor’
Nights/Club KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with Guadalupe Centers Inc. for the Mayor’s Nights/ Club KC in the amount of $30,029, from
May 1, 2017 through Septermber 30, 2017 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the
contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)
proposals. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote. Guadalupe
Centers, Inc. submitted the sole proposal to hold events at Tony Aguirre Community Center,
located at 2050 West Pennway, Kansas City, Mo 64108.

Guadalupe Centers, Inc. will be responsible for providing the overall program, marketing, and
site management at the site. The programs provided by Guadalupe Centers, Inc. will include
music, dancing, pool parties, STEM-related activities, and arts instruction, The age group
targeted for this site is middle school. The hours of operation are from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm on
Friday nights. This 12 week program is expected to serve more than 175 youth per night. The
contract amount of $30,029 will cover the cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other
related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. The program will
run from May 29" through August 11%. Funds are available in account 702091,

Resolution #30825 - Contract with the Nelson-Atking Museum for the 2017 Mayor’s
Nights/Club KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with the Nelson Atkins-Museum for the 2017 Mayor’s Nights/Club KC from May 1, 2017 through
September 30, 2017, in the amount of $15,000 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute
the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor's Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)



Official Recard of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks ead Recreation Commisaioners Mintes of the Meeting of April 11, 2017 — Page - 10

proposals. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote, Nelson-
Atkins Museum of Art submitted a proposal to hold events at their facility, located at 4525 Oak
Street, Kansas City, Mo 64111,

Nelson-Atkins Museum of Art will be responsible for providing the overall program, marketing,
and site management at the sites. The programs provided at Nelson-Atkins Museum of Art will
provide open mic night, camp-out, teens on the fringe festival, and end of the summer costume
ball. The ages targeted for these sites are middle school and high school. The hours of opetation
are from 7:00 pm to 11:30 pm on Friday and Saturday nights. These 6 week programs are
expected to serve more than 120 youth per night. The contract amount of $15,000 will cover the
cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. The program will
run from May 29" through August 11®, Funds are available in account 2030-702091.

Resolution #30826 — Contract with Kansas Citv Anti-Violence Project for the 2017 Mayor’s

Ni: ub KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with the Kansas City Anti-Violence Project for the 2017 Mayor’s Nights/Club KC, from May 1,
2017 through September 30, 2017 in the amount of $12,000 and authorized the Director or his
designee to execute the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. Representatives from
the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management staff were part of the interview
panel which selected the proposal by committee vote. We received (11) proposals. The Kansas
City Anti-Violence Project submitted a proposal to hold events at Brush Creek Community
Center, located at 3801 Emmanuel] Cleaver IT Blvd, Kansas City, Mo 64130.

Kansas City Anti-Violence Project will be responsible for providing the overall program,
marketing, and site management at the sites. The programs provided by Kansas City Anti-
Violence Project will include interactive workshops, history, art, music, ballroom, pageantry,
literature, educational workshops and community outings. The ages targeted for these sites are
middle school and high school. The hours of operation are from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm for middle
school, and 7:00 pm to 12:00 am for high school on Saturday nights. This 6 week program is
expected to serve more than 150 youth per night. The contract amount of $12,000 will cover the
cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other related expenses.

The term of the contract will begin May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. The program will
run from May 29" through August 11®, Funds are available in account 2030-702091.



Official Record of the Proceedings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissionars Minntes of the Meeting of Agril 11,2017 -Page - 11

lution #30827 — Contract with ArtsTech for the 2017 Mayor’s Ni lub KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with ArtsTech for the 2017 Mayor’s Nights/Club KC, May 1, 2017 through September 20, 2017
in the amount of §$37,000 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute the contract on
behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)
proposals. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote. ArtsTech
submitted a proposal to hold events at their facility, located at 1522 Holmes, Kansas City, Mo
64108,

ArtsTech will be responsible for providing the overall program, marketing, and site management
at the sites. The programs provided at ArtsTech will include STEAM-related activities such as
coding, robotics, and art. The programs provided at Brush Creek Community Center include
projects as part of the Urban Canvas Initiative. The ages targeted for these sites are middle
school and high school. The hours of operation are from 7:00 pm to 11:30 pm on Friday nights.
These 6 week programs are expected to serve more than 120 youth per night. The contract
amount of $37,000 will cover the cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other related
expenses,

The term of the contract will be from May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. Programming
will run from May 29™-August 112, Funds are available in account 2030-702091.

lution 8 - Contr with Mattie Rh Cen for the 2017 Mavor’
Nights/Club KC

On a motion by Commissioner Mecklenburg, duly seconded the Board approved the Contract
with Mattie Rhodes Center for the 2017 Mayor’s Nights/Club KC, from May 1, 2017 through
September 30, 2017, in the amount of $8,000 and authorized the Director or his designee to execute
the contract on behalf of the Board.

Background: On February 24, 2017, a RFP was released requesting organizations and agencies
to submit a proposal that demonstrated their capacity to implement the entertainment sports and
education programs of Mayor’s Night/Club KC Summer Youth programs. We received (11)
proposals. Representatives from the Office of the Mayor and Parks and Recreation management
staff were part of the interview panel which selected the proposal by committee vote. Mattie
Rhodes Center submitted a proposal to hold events at their Northeast facility, located at 148 N
Topping Ave, Kansas City, Mo 64123.

Mattie Rhodes Center will be responsible for providing the overall program, marketing, and site
management at the site. The programs provided by Mattie Rhodes Center will include athletic
activities, dance classes, healthy eating programs, and creative writing. The ages targeted for this



Official Recard of the Proceadings of the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners Minutss of the Meeting of April 11, 2017 - Page - 12

site are middle school and high school, The hours of operation are from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm on
Saturdays. This 12 week program is expected to serve more than 50 youth per night. The
contract amount of $8,000 will cover the cost of marketing, equipment, instructors, and other

related expenses.

The term of the contract will be May 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017. Programming will
run from May 29" through August 11%. Funds are available in account 2030-702091.

Director’s Report:

a. Major Construction Report — Travis Kiefer, Manager of the Planning & Design Services
Division gave a brief report.

b. Marketing Report — Heidi Downer, Manager of the Marketing Division gave a brief report.
PUBLIC MEETING —~ NO ONE APPEARED

Meseting is adjourned.

Jean Paul Chaurand, President Karmen D. Houston, Board Secretary
Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners



CITY OF FOUNTAINS
HEART OF THE NATION

KEANBAR CITY
MI1BSE§OURI

Sylvester “Sly” Iume; Ir,

Mayor

Jean-Paul Chavrand,
President

Amber Hackett Crosby,
Commissioner

Allen Dillingham,
Commissloner

Mary Jane Judy,
Commissioner

David Mecklenburg,
Commissioner

Mark L. McHenry,
Director

Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

“A Nationally Accredited Agency”

February 7, 2017

Perry J. Allen Jr., P.E.

Missouri Department of Transportation
600 NE Colbern Road

Lee's Summit, MO 64086

Perrv.Allen@modot.mo.goy

RE: RE: MoDOT Job Number: J412337
1-435 South Improvements — at the Biue River Trail Crossing
Section 4(f) Protected Resource

Dear Mr. Allen,

This regards proposed impacts to the Blue River Trail at the Blue River and 103~
St, as a result of the roadway and bridge reconstruction taking place for 1-435
South Improvements — at the Blue River Trail Crossing.

We reviewed the options of mitigating trail use during the construction of the
project. We are requesting a combination of option A and B. During construction
keep trail open with protection under bridge and provide detour route signed and
striped along 103 St, When bridge construction is complete, pavement markings,
traffic control devices, protected cover and signage will be removed and the trail
will be restored to conditions that are equal to or better than pre-construction
conditions.

Under Section 4(f) of the U.S. Department of Transportation Act of 1966, the Blue
River Greenway and trail are considered a Section 4(f) resource. The Parks and
Recreation Department, on behalf of the Board of Parks and Recreation
Commissioners, as the official with jurisdiction over the Blue River Trail, I concur
that impacts to this property are De minimis in that the proposed construction and
completed project will not adversely impact the activities, features, and attributes
of the resource that qualify it for protection under Section 4(f). The proposed
construction area of the I-435 Improvements is anticipated to take place entirely
within existing highway right of way, with no acquisition of Section 4(f) property.

If you have any questions regarding this letjef, please feel free to contact Richard

Allen, Pgst P -513-7713.

Mark enry,
Parks and Recreation Department

Cc: Travis Kiefer, Assistant Director Parks and Recreation
Richard Allen, Park Planner

Terry R. Dopson Parks and Recreation Administration Building

4600 East 63rd Street * Kansas City, Missouri 641304629 « 816-513-7500 e Fax: 816-513-7719



Intra-Deparimental Communication

Date:  April 25, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Terrence Williams, Special Projects Manager

Subject: CONSIDERATION OF A LICENSE FOR FACILITY USE WITH
CONCESSION AGREEMENT WITH KNUCKLEHEADS, INC. FOR

BLUEGRASS IN THE BOTTOMS
Background:

Knuckleheads, Inc. wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession Agreement for the use of
Heim Park, located at Chestnut Trafficway and Martin Avenue, to hold Bluegrass in the Bottoms
on May 19 and 20, 2017. The Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated $7,000.00

for this two day event.

Bluegrass in the Bottoms, which is a collaborative effort between Knuckleheads, Inc. and
Mammoth Productions, will consist of nationally acclaimed bluegrass bands and a craft beer
festival. This outdoor ticketed event, which hopes to become an annual event each spring, wiil
draw some of the best bluegrass bands and artists from across North America. The gates will
open at 5:00 pm, with the music festival concluding by 11:00 pm. Off-duty KCPD will be on
hand for security. Places to legally park for the event will be heavily advertised to festival
patrons.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

1. Listing of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3, Marketing plan

4, Certificate of insurance per city requirements

5. Map of event layout

6. Copies of other City permits required in hosting the event

7. A plan to repair any turf or park damages associated with event

8. A written out plan with surrounding neighborhoods to address litter and

parking conditions during and after the event
Recommendatjon:

Staff recommends Board approval of the agreement with Knuckleheads, Inc. and request Board
authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date:  April 25, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Terrance Williams, Special Projects Manager

Subject: CONSIDERATION OF A LICENSE FOR FACILITY USE WITH
CONCESSION AGREEMENT WITH THE HUMANE SOCIETY OF
GREATER KANSAS CITY FOR DOG-N-JOG 2017

B und:

The Humane Society of Greater Kansas City wishes to enter into a Facility Use with Concession
Agreement for the use of Ward Parkway between J.C. Nichols Parkway and Pennsylvania to
hold Dog-n-Jog on June 11, 2017. The Parks and Recreation Department will be compensated
$900.00 for this one day event.

The 30™ Annual Dog-n-Jog includes a 1 and 2 mile walk or ran around The Country Club Plaza
by participants and their four legged friends. Festivities include vendors, pet photos, a pet
caricaturist, a DJ, an agility run, a raffle and local emcees. Dog-n-Jog hopes to attract over 1,000
participants at this annual event.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

1. Listing of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4. Marketing plan and copies of other City permits required

5. Certificate of insurance per City requirements

6. Map of event layout

7. Trash and recycling plan

8. A plan to repair any turf or park damages associated with event
Recommendation:

Staff recommends Board approval of the agreement with The Humane Society of Greater Kansas
City and request Board authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the agreement on
behalf of the Board.



'4 Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Terrence Williarns, Special Projects Manager

Subject: CONSIDERATION OF A LICENSE FOR FACILITY USE WITH
CONCESSION AGREEMENT WITH THE HEART OF AMERICA COUNCIL,
BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA FOR THE 2017 HIGH TRAIL DAY CAMP

Background:

The Heart of America Council, Boy Scouts of America wishes to enter into a Facility Use with
Concession Agreement for the use of Jerry Smith Park, located at E. 135 Street and Prospect
Avenue, to hold their annual High Trail Day Camp. The camp would run June 26 to June 30,
2017. In exchange for compensation, the Parks and Recreation Department will partner with
BSA for Dig Day 2017. Dig Day, which will occur in May, consists of planting over 80
community flower beds across Kansas City in one day.

The High Trail District Day Camp will host 200 to 250 scouts ranging in age from 7 to 10 years
old. Over 25 activities and program areas will be offered, with about 100 volunteer adult leaders
to oversee the camp and its activities. The camp will run from 9:00 am to 3:30 pm daily.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

1. Listing of items for sale

2. A plan for traffic and parking control

3. Safety and security plan

4. Marketing plan and copies of other City permits required

5. Certificate of insurance per City requirements

6. Map of event layout

7. Trash and recycling plan

8. A planto repair any turf or park damages associated with event
Recommendation:

Staff recommends Board approval of the agreement with Heart of America Council, Boy Scouts
of America and request Board authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the
agreement on behalf of the Board,



CITY OF FOUNTAING
MEART OF THE NATION

Parks and Recreation

KEANSAB C1TY
MIBSIGUR!

DATE: Aprl 25,2017

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Terry Rynard, Deputy Director

RE: Contract Amendment #1 with Bridging the Gap Heartland Tree Alliance

BACKGROUND:

On July 26, 2016 the Parks and Recreation Department entered into a community-based
program contract with Bridging the Gap (BT'G) Heartland Tree Alliance (HTA) for tree
planting services in the amount of $300,000. During the first two planting seasons of this
agreement HTA will have done the following: 1) planted 500 street and park trees in
twelve different neighborhoods 2) planted 60 trees in three different parks to serve as
educational arboretums 3) worked with Boy Scouts of America to create a program for a
forestry badge which inciudes training and the planting of over 3,000 riparian trees.
Amendment #1 extends the term of the agreement from May 31, 2018 to June 30, 2019
and increases the amount by $300,000 for a total of $600,000. In addition to continuing
the neighborhood planting projects and work with the Boy Scouts, this amendment will
include the following:

1. Restoration plantings in areas where honeysuckle has been

2. Tree plantings along existing walking trails in parks (not an arboretum - these would
be without signs)

3. Create and implement an ash replacement program as either a "free tree give-away" or
"rebate” program for homeowners

The Human Relations Department reviewed and waived the MBE/WBE goals for this
contract.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of amendment #1with Bridging the Gap Heartland Tree
Alliance for $300,000 with a term extension until June 30, 2019 and requests Board
authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the
Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 15, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Teresa Rynard, Deputy Director

Subject: Amendment #3 with KC Organics and Natural Market

BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION
In May of 2014 the Board approved an agreement with Kansas City Organics and Natural Market

to sell organically grown and/or produced items in Minor Park (located at Red Bridge Road and
Holmes Road), on Saturdays, from 8a.m. — 12:30p.m, from May through October.
Compensation to the City is $50 per month. The Board approved Amendment #1, extending the
contract time to April 30, 2015, all other terms remained unchanged.

Amendment #2 extended the contract term to April 30, 2017 and allowed KC Organics to extend
the market during the winter months for $12.50 per Saturday for the months of October through
April 30, 2017. All other terms of the original agreement shall remain in effect. This
Amendment #3 will extend the contract time to April 30, 2018, all other terms and conditions
remain unchanged and in effect.

The contractor will be responsible for providing the following items:

Sell only organically grown and/or produced items at an open-air market per above
Litter removal related to open-air market

A plan for traffic and parking control

Marketing plan, in cooperation with Parks and Recreation

Certificate of Insurance per City requirements

Payment of $50 per month for May — September, and $12.50 per Saturday October —
April due by August 31, 2017, to Parks and Recreation.

R

The City will be responsible for providing the following items:
1. Designate in writing a person to act as City representative for this license
2. Access to premises
3. Assistance in the marketing of the organic farmers market

RECOMME ON

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #3 with Kansas City Organics and Natural
Market, extending the contract time to April 30, 2018and requests Board authorization for the
Director or his designee to execute the Amendment on behalf of the Board.



OITY OF FOUNTAlNS
HRART OF THE NATIRC

weie Parks and Recreation Department

DATE: April 25,2017
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Heidi Downer, Marketing & Events

SUBJECT:  Amendment #1 for Professional Services Contract with Sage for Marketing Strategy,
Creative Development, Plan Implementation and Management

BACKGROUND:

In August January of 2016, the Parks Board approved and entered into Professional Services Contract
through April 2017 for $125,000 with Sage to work with the department staff on the website and marketing
the department. This Amendment extends the contract for an additional year (thru April 30, 2018) and an
additional $117,900 for a total contracted amount of $242,900. The scope of services includes:

» Collateral Material Design (does not include printing costs): 2017 Fall/Winter Guide, 2017
Year in Review and 2018 Spring/Summer Fun Guide

» Strategic Roadmap/Brand Planning - Includes development of a strategic roadmap that
identifies the departments goals/objectives, target andiences/personas, primary messaging.

¢ Account Coordination, Meetings & Project Updates — Includes time for monthly meetings
to discuss outcomes and opportunities with City staft.

* Advertising Design & Support — Includes ad concepting and design, as well as the sizing,
resizing, preparation of files and delivery to various publications.

¢ Media Planning and Buying — Includes media planning services to research, recommend
and negotiate all appropriate media purchases, arrange meetings and review media proposals.

* Website Updates, Maintenance and Revisions —Revise website, including updates to look
and feel, navigation and functionality.

* Local PR/Media Relations Pitching & Tracking ~ Public relations counsel including new
story idea development, local media coverage pitches, press releases, event support and
partnership development.

¢ Internal PR/Communications Campaign -Internal communications campaign to increase
aweareness among Depertment staff,

Human Relations Department stablished and approved the MBE/WBE goals of 16% and 7 respectively for this

C ATT

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #1 with Sage in the amount of 117,900, extend the
contract term to April 30, 2018with Sage and requests Board authorization for the Director or his
designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.



CITY OF FOUNTAMNS
HEAKT OF THE MATION

Parks and Recreation

EANSAE CLTY
N IIFOURI

DATE: April 25,2017
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Doug Schroeder, Administrative Officer

RE: Amendment #3 with Midwest Pool Management - Aquatics Management of
Junior and Outdoor Pools

BACKGROUND:

The Parks and Recreation Department entered into an agreement on March 17, 2014 with
Midwest Pool Management to manage the Junior and Outdoor Pools.

This Amendment #3 exercises the option to extend the contract from April 15, 2017 to
April 30, 2018 and compensate Midwest Pool Management an amount not to exceed
$540,237.00 which includes: security, salaries, maintenance, marketing and a fixed
management fee for the 2017 Summer swimming season and Spring 2018 start up costs.
Spring 2018 costs and the term extended to April 30, 2018 have been added in order to
have the contract dates and compensation amounts in line with the city’s fiscal year. This is
a decrease of $36,426.00 from 2016 which reflects salary and supply savings due to not
opening Gilham Pool and only keeping Brush Creek and Line Creek Pools open after the
school year begins.

Parks and Recreation will retain 100% of all gate revenue and share a 50/50 split of the net
revenue generated by the supplemental programs such as swim lessons, water aerobics,
after hour pool rentals, etc.

Funds are available in account 2030-702580.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #3 with Midwest Pool Management to
manage the Junior and Outdoor Pools in the amount of 540,237.00, contract term to April
30, 2018 and requests Board authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the
amendment on behalf of the Board.



CITY OF FOUNTAINS
HEART OF THE XATKN

Parks and Recreation

XANSAS CITY
MIZsSURI

DATE: April 25,2017

TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

FROM: Doug Schroeder, Administrative Officer

RE: Amendment #5 with Midwest Pool Management — The Bay Aquatic Center

B GR H

Parks and Recreation Department entered into an agreement with Midwest Pool
Management on May 4, 2012, to manage The Bay Aquatic Center.

This Amendment #5 will compensate Midwest Pool Management for the 2017 summer
swimming season and 2018 startup costs in an amount not to exceed $591,485.00 which
includes: security, salaries, marketing, maintenance and a fixed management fee and
extends the contract term to April 15, 2017 to April 30, 2019. Spring 2018 costs and the
term extended to April 30, 2019 have been added in order to have the contract dates and
compensation amounts in line with the city’s fiscal year. This increase from 2016 of
$27,991.00 is a result of increased liability insurance, marketing, maintenance and salary
Costs,

Parks and Recreation will retain 100% of all gate revenue and share a 50/50 split of the net
revenue generated by the supplemental programs such as swim lessons, water aerobics,
after hour pool rentals, etc.

Funds are available in account 2030-702585.

C ATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #5 with Midwest Pool Management to
manage The Bay Aquatic Center in an amount not to exceed $591,485.00, contract term to
April 30, 2019 and requests Board authorization for the Director or his designee to execute
the amendment on behalf of the Board.



CITY OF FOUNTAING
HEART OF THE RATION

Parks and Recreation

KANSAS ClTY
MlEEOURI

DATE: April 25, 2017
TO: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
FROM: Doug Schroeder, Administrative Officer

RE: Contract Amendment #6 with Midwest Pool Management — Springs Aquatic
Center

BACKGROUND:

The Parks and Recreation Department entered into an agreement on April 12, 2011 with
Midwest Pool Management to manage the Springs Aquatic Center. The current term ends
on November 30, 2017.

This Amendment #6 extends the contract term to April 30, 2018 and defines compensation
for the 2017 summer swimming season and the spring 2018 startup costs. The contract term
extension and spring 2018 costs have been added in order to have the contract dates and
compensation amounts in line with the city’s fiscal year. Parks and Recreation will pay
Midwest Pool Management an amount not to exceed $598,661.00 which includes: security,
salaries, marketing, maintenance and a management fee, This is an increase of $22,250.00
from last year due to increases in liability insurance, marketing, maintenance and
management fees.

Parks and Recreation will retain 100% of all gate revenue and share a 50/50 split of the net
revenue generated by the supplemental programs such as swim lessons, water aerobics,
after hour pool rentals, etc. In addition, Parks and Recreation will share a 50/50 split of
the revenue commission from the concession sub-contractor.

Funds are available in account 2030-702584.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #6 with Midwest Pool Management to
extend the contract term to April 30, 2018 and to manage the Springs Aquatic Center for
the 2017 swimming season and 2018 spring startup in an amount not to exceed
$598,661.00 and requests Board authorization for the Director or his designee to execute
the amendment on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: Anna Marije Tutera, Executive Director, Kansas City Museuym
Subject: Kansas City Museum’s Historic Restoration and Renovation Project,

Visitor Experience Plan with Gallagher & Associates

Backeround

In June 2016 International Architects Atelier (IAA) hired Gallagher & Associates to work with the
project team and Museum staff to produce a Visitor Experience Plan for the Kansas City Museum
historic restoration and renovation project. The new Visitor Experience Plan expands upon the 2010
interpretive plan, bringing it into alignment with the current architectural design plan, and preparing
a solid foundation for future design and development of exhibitions and programs. Gallagher &
Associates is an internationally recognized Museum Planning and Design Firm with offices in
Washington D.C., New York, San Francisco, and Singapore,

The Visitor Experience Plan was completed on April 21, 2017, and it outlines six core interpretive
and thematic stories, which will be explored throughout Corinthian Hall (the mansion) and the
Carriage House in exhibitions, programs, events, and amenities. The Visitor Experience Plan sets
the scope and parameters for exhibit design and development, which will be forthcoming. The six
core stories are as follows:

Cultural Confluences: Rivers to 1880s

A City Beautiful on the Missouri: 1890s to 1930s
Thriving Populations: 1890s to 1950s

Decline & Renewal: 1950s to 1990s

Cultural Renaissance: 1970s to Present

Our City, Our Stories: Past, Present & Future

Recommendation
Staff recommends Board approval of the Resolution adopting the Visitor Experience Plan produced

by Gallagher & Associates.



Resolution #

WHEREAS, the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners operates and manages the
Kansas City Museum; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners is committed to renovating the
Kansas City Museum into a premier museum of Kansas City’s history and cultural heritage; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners supports the existing Strategic
Plan and Business Plan for the Kansas City Museum as well as the Phase III Architectural
Design Planning and Development for Stage I Construction, which includes the lower level, first
floor, second floor, and third floor of Corinthian Hall; and,

WHEREAS, International Architects Atelier in June 2016 hired Gallagher & Associates—an
internationally recognized Museum Planning and Design Firm with offices in Washington D.C.,
New York, San Prancisco, and Singapore—to work with the project team and Museum staff to
produce a Visitor Experience Plan for the Kansas City Museum, which expands upon previous
interpretive planning, bringing the Visitor Experience Plan into alignment with the current
architectural design plan, and preparing a solid foundation for future design and development of
exhibitions and programs; and

WHEREAS, the Visitor Experience Plan was completed on April 21, 2017, and it outlines six
core interpretive and thematic stories, which will be explored throughout Corinthian Hall (the
mansion) and the Carriage House in exhibitions, programs, events, and amenities.

WHEREAS, The Visitor Experience Plan sets the scope and parameters for exhibit design and
development, which will be forthcoming;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF PARKS AND
RECREATION COMMISSIONERS: Accept the Visitor Experience Plan produced by
Gallagher & Associates for the Kansas City Museum historic restoration and renovation project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That this Resolution be entered into the Official Minutes of
the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners and the Secretary is directed to furnish a copy
to the City Clerk.

L, Karmen Houston, Secretary to the Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners, do hereby
certify that the above is a true and correct copy of Resolution # , approved by the
Board on April 25, 2017.

Karmen Houston, Secretary



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Anna Marie Tutera, Executive Director, Kansas City Museum

Subject: Kansas City Museum Historic Restoration and Renovation Project,
Design Professional Services Agreement for Phase Three, Amendment #1 with
International Architects Atelier

On August 23, 2016, the Parks Board approved a new design professional services agreement
with International Architects Atelier (IAA) for Phase Three of the Kansas City Museum’s
historic restoration and renovation project. The scope of services includes design development
and construction documents for Stage I Construction of Corinthian Hall including the lower
level, first, and second floors. The agreement amount for Phase Three was $928,828.00 through
December 2019 and includes design development, construction documents, and bidding
documents for Stage I Construction. The MBE/WBE goals set by HRD were 11.5% and 11.1%

respectively.

Amendment #1 for Phase Three includes an additional scope of services and fee for design
development and construction documents to add the third floor of Corinthian Hall to Stage I
Construction. The total amount for Amendment #1 for Phase Three is $189,000 through
December 2019 and includes design development, construction documents, and bidding
documents for the third floor; continued professional communications and community outreach
services provided by Red Quill Communications; and continued program and design planning
from the project artists and Gallagher & Associates. There is no change to the MBE/WBE goals
set by HRD; they remain at 11.5% and 11.1% respectively.

Recommendation
Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #1 for Phase Three for an agreement with

International Architects Atelier in the amount of $189,000 and requests Board authorization for
the Director or designee to execute the agreement on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: Anna Marie Tutera, Executive Director, Kansas City Museum
Subject: Kansas City Museum Historic Restoration and Renovation Project,

Amendment #1, Phase IT Pre-Construction Services with
J.E. Dunn Construction Co.

B und

The Parks Department issued an Invitation to Bid on October 3, 2016 for Construction Manager at
Risk Services (CM@R) for Stage I Construction of the Kansas City Museum historic restoration
and renovation project. Per the Invitation to Bid, the CM@R contract will extend through December
2019 and will be awarded in a series of Phases to include Pre-Construction Services and
Construction Services.

Phase I of the Pre-Construction Services for a total amount of $100,000 was approved on December
20, 2017 and has been completed. Work included the following scope of services: a detailed review
of the design development documents and a detailed estimate based on these documents; review of
documents for constructability and quality of all building components; cost alternatives to maximize
value allowing as much scope as possible; development of a milestone schedule for design; first
round of estimates and bid packages (including identifying early packages); and commencement of
the development of the construction schedule.

This Amendment #1 for Phase II of Pre-Construction Services and is a total amount of $185,000
through the end of May 2017. Phase II will include but may not be limited to the following scope of
services: providing a detailed estimate of the 75% (or agreed-upon level of completion)
construction documents; providing continuous pricing for options that the project team discusses, as
well as cost alternatives for the project team to review; finalizing bid packages, as well as the
construction schedule; and providing all other required items up until the bidding of the first bid
package.

There are no HRD requirements for Pre-Construction Services.

Recommendation

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #1 in the amount of $185,000 with J.E. Dunn

Construction Co. to begin Phase IT of Pre-Construction Services and requests Board approval for the
Director or designee to execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Travis W, Kiefer, P.E., Asst. Dir.- Engineering, Planning, & Design Division

Subject: Recommendation for Bid Award - Brush Creek Confluence Trail

Background
Ten bids were received and opened on March 8, 2017 for the Brush Creek Confluence

Trail. The lowest and best-qualified bid received was from Gunter Construction in the
amount of $1,019,470.00. The base bid includes the installation of 3,138 linear feet of
trail including a pedestrian bridge over the Brush Creek and a protective cover of the trail
under the Union Pacific Railroad Bridge. This trail project will connect Brush Creek
Trail, Cleaver II Trail, and the Blue River Trail.

This Federal/State funded project requires that the MBE and WBE goals for this project
be combined into one DBE goal amount equal to 5% of the construction costs. Gunter
Construction has received the State’s approval as a general contractor, has met the State’s
DBE requirements. We have received bid award concurrence from the Missouri
Department of Transportation. Work shall be completed within 300 calendar days from
the date of “Notice to Proceed”.

Funds for this Brush Creek Confluence Trail Improvements Project are available in
accounts 3090-708309, 3090-708093, 3090-708509 and Developer Allotment Accounts.

Recomm tions

Staff recommends Board approval for awarding the project base bid to Gunter
Construction for a total contract price of $1,019,470.00, with a total contract completion
time of 300 calendar days, and requests authorization for the Director or his designee to
execute the contract on behalf of the Board.



BID TABULATION
BRUSH CREEK AND BLUE RIVER CONFLUENCE

BID OPENING MARCH 8, 2107 . ENGINEER'S EST $1,119,927.00
GUNTER NATIONAL FOURSTAR | RADMACHER
CONSTRUCTION STREETSCAPE CONSTRUCTION BROTHERS
Project Manager CHRISTINA@ GUNTERKC, [ NTNL.STREETSCAPE®@G | FOURSTARFAX@GM | EANDRES @ RADBROE
RICHARD ALLEN COM MAIL COM AlL.COM X.COM
BASE BID 1,019,470.00 1,087.236.00 1,255,277.50 1,375,253.50
TOTAL BID 1,018,470.00 1,067,236.00 1,255,277.50 1,375,253.50
J.M. FAHEY
_F_'YHAMID EXCAVATING CONSTRUCTION | MEGA INQ_USTHIES AMINO BROTHERS
DAVEHOGGAID @ JMFAH | BRIAN@MEGAKC CO | STEVE@ AMINOBROS.
AVATION.COM EY.COM M COM
CORRECTED BID
BASE BID 1,049,254.00 1,675,125.38 1,125,757.00 1,526,1569.07
TOTAL BID 1,049,234.00 1,675,125.38 1,125,757.00 1,526,159.07
PYRAMID
CONTRACTORS LEATH & SONS, INC.
INFO®PYRAMIDCONTRA |DAVEO@ L FATHANDSON
CTORSINC.COM S.COM
BASE BID 1,121,988.10 1,442,845.55
TOTAL BID 1,121,988.10 1,442,845.55 0.00 0.00




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Travis W. Kiefer, P.E., Assistant Dir. -~ Eng., Pln., & Design Division

Subject: Shoal Creek Parkway Design with Taliaferro & Browne — Amendment #7

Background

On January 27, 2009, the Board passed Resolution #28490 approving a professional services
contract with Taliaferro & Brown in the amount of $68,640.00 for engineering services related to
the future alignment of Shoal Creek Parkway from the NE 96 Street round-a-bout on the east to
North Brighton Avenue. Funding for these services was made available through the Tax
Increment Financing Commission. Amendment #1 through #6 added scope to the project
increasing the contract total to $1,689,741.00 and extending the completion date to September,
2016.

This proposed Amendment #7 extends the time of the contract with a completion date of
March 15, 2018.

The Human Relations Department has approved the participation goals of 13% MBE and 8%
WBE and the goals will be met or exceeded at the close-out of the project

Recommendation

Staff recommends Board approval of Amendment #7 with Taliaferro & Browne to extend the
contract time to March 15, 2018 and request authorization for the Director or his designee to
execute the amendment on behalf of the Board.



Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 25, 2017

To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners

From: Travis W, Kiefer, P.E., Asst. Dir. - Engineering, Planning, & Design Division
Subject: Trailside Center Parking Lot Expansion - Change Order #1

B

On November 8, 2016 the Board approved the Trailside Center Parking Lot Expansion Project in
the amount of $347,046.20. The project is located across the street from the Trailside Center and
is intended to serve as ancillary parking with 31 additional parking spaces for the facility and as a
trail head for the nearby Indian Creek Trail. The work to be done includes demolition of the
existing asphalt and concrete parking lot and installation of a concrete and asphalt parking facility
with lighting and landscaping.

Proposed Change Order #1, in the amount of $3,646.22, includes furnishing and installing a
chain link fence gate, additional concrete sidewalk, and a bicycle repair station, This will bring
the contract total to $350,692.42. There will be 15 additional days added to the original contract
date for final completion, extending the new completion date to July 21, 2017.

Funds for Change Order #1 are available through Trailside Center Parking Lot Expansion Project
No. 70169902, acct. no. 3090-708609.

Mega Industries Corporation’s utilization goals of 15% MBE and 10% WBE as submitted &
approved by HRD will be met by the completion of the project.

Recommendation
Staff recommends Board approval of Change Order #1 with Mega Industries Corporation in the

amount of $3,646.22, extending the final completion date to July 21, 2017, and requests
authorization for the Director or his designee to execute the contract on behalf of the Board.



| 8bed

‘ubjsep] %08 euld> | co889102 siiedoy urejuNo afduI3 JeH ueqieg
1da0uco Jeuoyippe Joj fesodosd JWIQNS | SUEYNSUOD “UBISP BUS pUE UjEjUNO}
8y 0} suogessye Joj sydesucd uBisap leuopppe Bupsenbas pepnjpouy SjuBLLIOD)
uEIs Aq pamejaas useq sey yoym Apris sy 10 YRIp PSRILIGNS WES) JUB}NSUOY
SJUSLINDOP UORINNSUOS dn Bupysiud|  %g uelly | el6¥LL02 Med YeQ apym
pajejdwiod josioid| %001 Wiy | Z26¥.210.Z punaibAeld AJlIIqISSa00y yued SiiiH Aueyi |
WNooOY JUBIS| %0 Yy | L0€181049 10]03ULI0Y) JGARY BNig YBd edoms
uajoNIsUCY JOIUNS O} 19BRUCD Bujpieme pue piq 19sjold] %S WIV | ¥26vBI0Z Yed pedy 'V saluer
pajejdwo) j0eloud| %00} wlly | p0eLLI0L IIBWOAA '@ Jjeday [IRl] jeauD ueipu]
B %0 uslly | SOELLLOZ [I21] AeMB NESINOYD PuB GE-|
"Bujiney UoOW 8nig O} papIeme Sem puUE piq | 9Seyd| %G ua|ly LOELSL0L UOMJI8UUOY |el | UOIAIA
.__"BuineH UOO enjg O] PopIEME SeM PUE PIq | 9584d| %5 uajly LOELS 0L UORISUUCY) |IB1] UOIMA
—_Bulinel UCO ©Nnjg &) popIEME SeM PUE Piq | 95BUg| %Gz wiy | ¥0ELYL0L UOROBULOY [[BJ | " UOJAIA O} "y poomajbug|
"BUINEH] UCO oN|g O POPIEME SBM PUE PIg | 958Ud | %SZ uelly | v0ELvLOLZ }ied poome(bu|
‘sbums]  %g WiV | 20662102 ¥Ed opisAquno)
PUE 836} SapNjoul X0 “HOM 9y} 10} 80US- PSCJE LM PEJNDOXe USaq SBY Od
‘PRIn0aXe $yed D) PUB SADY UBem]eq Jusweal %S uely | 206v210Z yed jenus)
Ploy e uojPNISUOd 1o} 1oeRuco By Buieuew jooyog ajqnd Ay Sesueyy
_P1q Mo Jaqungy” Gulpuny [euohippe uo Bupjiom pue piqoalaid] %Gz ually | SOELZLOID ifell 18ARy enjg-jeelr) ysrug
"Pig M0| Jejung Buipuny [BUORIPPE UO BUPHOM PUE piq108lolg| %Sz Wiy | S0eLzZL02 llel] JaAR snig-jeau) ysrug
"PI MO] Jejuns)” BUIpUN] [eUORIPPE uo Bupom pue piqoeloid| %Sz uwlly | SOELZLOZ lle1l JoARd enjg-yees) ysrug|
"Pi9 M| Jung - Bujpunj [BUCRIPPE UO BUDLOM PUE pIg 100l0id| %52 uely | soeLziLoz IR JOAR] onjg-year) ysnug
199loud 1no Buisojo] %00} uelly _ [90€12L0/9 40190uu0)) jiel) Asijol]-1eARy enig
lleseud| %09 usiiv | 90€1Z1L0L ifes] Jojdeuuoy) jjel] ASjj0l] JeApy enjg
4o} sBumesp uononysuos uo Bupuom Buisaq MS IO aunf JO }5om ay) Jos sem
e6puq ot Jo | wowBeg “eBpuq 8y} 10} JUSUMNGE pue Jeid JGUSO Ly Uo Buppom
ueaq aAey Aay) pus JOJORIUOD AU S| UOKEBABOXT JSUORWPEY “YOIEN JURIS
uBjsep ey} Joj sWSIAGURI] Lpym JuoWBRIBE UE Bupioexs I IUES| %0 Ually | Z0£L910L odomg-11 Aemuoels JeArd enig]
UOHONSUOD JAJUNS) O} J9BRUOD BuIpIeme pue piq 1oeloid| %G uly | eZ6voLoL Yed Jajsiuueg
~SWEIg| oe[dwoy | JBW | 35eloid SuieN yoelold
% oeloid

"N saonieg ubisaq pue Buluueld yred “Bug -aq Juegsissy ‘JOJony "M Snel|

sajepdn juswaaoudw) reyded 7 LA4 :103rgns

SJSUOISS|WIOD UONEaIoaY puUEe Syied JO pieog ‘0l

2102 ‘Sz |udy




g obeg

"sdau pooyloqubieu Wwoly [eaoidde Bugieme pue payelp

%S. suld LOEL9L0L Jw) 30BdS usalD IS |00Yag Aleyuswelg AoDoW JouLod
81 ued Jajsely "uBjsap i si ued Jejsely °| awm;n_ uo psjeldwas uofonnsuoy)
| @seyd uj paejdwod| %001 auln LOG6S 0L S88i] Yed snqunjod
“Jawwns alojeq a)s|dwod %0¢€ SUID 806+€10L Il 8sBlYd - 3Hed snquinjo)
8q 0} pajoedxa s| uogongsuoy) "pajonsuod Buieq ale sylem meu pue ‘ajedwos
s| Buipesb ‘a101dwios 9,66 S| uoniOWSp ABMISPUN S| UOKINISUCD Z ‘SUd
"LLIS1/2 U0 SjeusB}e UB SE pig 0) Ino ob [ ioefoud| %09 auliD 206+910L SjuaLLIBAQLIW| YiBd PUBRABID
sy Jou J1 Jnq sueplo aseyound yBnoiy pojjesul eq [|m Jes Bums ay) ualy eoud
poob e s1 sjonb )i jJuswidinbe Jos Buwms Bu lje3su Joj sjonb e BumeB uo Bupuom
"Pesn aq pinoys SuUO}s Moy uo sbuljea) %01 aullD YLEVLLOL JHed punojy ueipuj 1o yed ppng
Jivy) 16 0} sdes pooyloqybieu yum Bupsaw e Buiueue uo Bupuom Ing ssaiboid
ul aJe suBisep Aleupuield "paydeiSojoyd pue psmala u aABY soe)
"§88001d 8] Uejs 0) WaY] Ylim DUREDIUNWIWICD USS] Sey JElS %l auln €£088S102 UO|JRAOUSY UBuno ] JOYJOA
“saedal Jeypny Yiim ISISSE 0} SOOJAISS [EUCRIpPE ajeucp o) pesuBe sjueynsuc)
“JEIS Siled Way sjuswweo Jed pajoidwiod Bujeq si Apms Jo ueiq|  %Gr eullD | 10559101 ejoBlad 0o8Ed UL
301nos Buipuny Juelafip 10ejad ewes %0 aulD £088910L SJ[eGSY UIRJUNO Wopaald Jo Juids
9A0QE SE Slies %0¢ sullD €0889L0L sijedey ulejuno wopesid jo yuids
@A0QE SE awes %02 aulln €0889L0L UlEjUNO wopaald jo Juids
"Wodau [euy Jo} paiepisucd aq s}deouod [eucpippe %00 sullD £0889104 ujejunoj wopaal4 jo idg
pajsanbes pue pemaiaay JJels “uNjonus Uleuno) el Jo Jousiu| el ajebysaaul
0} uofiowap aARd3[as papnjoul sisAjeuy "Hodeu Yeip pSIILGNS WES) JUE)NSU0D
. "SUGNIEAGUST SI8[aW00[ 5507 suly | L088ZI0L U[EILINO] 8SIOYEDS B12J1D JoKON|
0} papasu Buipuny Sujurewas By Jo Yonw pasies Sey BeILILCD Bujsiespuny
JaBIUNIOA "UCRENSIUILIDE UOHONOSUOD apiaoid pUB SJUSWN0p UONONSU0D
ajejdwoo 0} papuewe Gujeq s| JusweaiBe 'SHUBLLNOOY UORONISUOD UO Buppom
S| pue 'I0)BAUOY PUB YEIS SHied LM oW Wed) B3] JUB}INSU0D “ejajdwoo st Apmg
"dY 10} S82|AI9S 0 adoos e ajeasd 0} pasn BURq S| UOJUM ‘SUONEpUSWILLCOal| %E auD 10225102 ubjS Suel] oased puE poomur]
pue yauessal %Em Jjoy pejiwgns Auedwod UOHEICISa) [BJSW PUOSaG
"21,0z BUNdS Ul 9W0D (M JepUIBWS] pUE ‘pejue|d Usaq eABY Saan| %08 aujID 10882104 - sjusweacidw) uleunod [eUOWa S JalyByaily
Mmau ay Jo Jsuid Jdog w pejue|d asem sosseld [EJusewIO pue sjejuualad MaN
"SniE)S| epe[awioy | BN | joeloid SUIEN J00l01d|
% yo8loid

"Al(] SSoIAISg UBiseq pue Bujuueld sued “Bug “Jiq JUE)SISSY 'Jajeny "M\ SIABLL

sajepdn juewosAosdw) [eyded LA 1Lo3rans

$ISUOISSIWIOY) UOREAINaY PUE Sied Jo pieog 0L

1102 ‘s¢ ludy




¢ abeyg

"ss800.d U] JusWeaBE 1PERUCYD "PeIoSles JUEHNSUOD]  %E omen | LOEELL0Z ueld Jejsep yled AsjooD
‘seseyd punoibAe|d eimny ssnos|p o) SeAnEjUSsaIdel %G pe|d £08¥.10. Ed POOMUUIAA

pooyioqybiau pue ||eH UswomjiounoD Ui Jop “ssaiBoud ul Bujuuerd Aeujwieid
110z Bupidg peesions pUE SEale pequmsip pees|  %c6 peid BP0l Wed ayoueoy

Areiodws) s JojoR1U0D "PBIEISUl LIBSQ SABY YOBI SYIq PUE SJUSLINGSU| [eJISNy
PRI | ZZ6¥GI0L sjuawacudwl SXe sed 0ZZelbIn|
Pe|d 9Z6¥.LL0L sjuewaAoidui| yued epeied - YANOM
peld4 LOB¥LLOL | Hd Yed epesed - ALIBPEIY YINOA ueq.n D)
"pesedaid Buieq s8]  %GZ Peld | 026¥ZI0Z Wied Jes|

SIBLINDOP JPBJUCD “I18PP|q 1S8q pue }SeMO| 3y} SEM LORONISUOT) WolsND d B g
"uofoNsucd Joj Bulpun Dvid jeucnippe] %0z peld $055910. Med weyyo

PEaN "OIpNig SI0MPUET WO SJUSWINDOP UORONSUOD 195 pig Buimsway
e2.n0s Buspuny eseyip ejad sweg pejd £06S1L0L UOREZINIQE]S || ISBYd - ABMUBAIS) SANONY
8ainos Bujpuny WaseyIp 1efaid oweg pe4 £061S10L UOREZ||IQE}S | 8SEYd ABMUBaIS) aAaNONg
Peld | €06v¥910L obpLg uelSaped Aemusels) eAexong
saunos Bujpuny juaseyp woloid ewes| %0 peid L0EZZ104 adeosjeans Aempeoig
"L10ZABN|  %0€ peid £022¥10.L PY Hodisap 0} 1§ L6E way Aempeosg

Ul PSSIUBADE 8q |Im Suejd "Sjuewwnoop uogdngsuod Bupedsid s1 suea] pinog
"LL0Z/SH| %01 peld 126¥LLOL Med BllIA JopY

UC penss] Sem dIN "JOJoRAUoD SEB pajoejes uasq sey Bugoequor) swnsuid
"SjuSWoAQIG] palsap| %0 ped 018BL10L sjuaLwaAcIdw] pooMUr] 0 LS

SSTOSIP 0) 0£/9 UO ‘Juspisald Jajua) Bujwes] siognQ ‘sowseg e Ljim 1apy :

‘pancidde| %gy auy [ 1062910Z Wed pooloqubieN ezeid yinog

st ubisep Jaye ‘saApswey Joejoid ejoidiicd o) poolpoqybiau 1o Jed Aq

uo payJom Bujeq si JudsweelBy “Jexuew aoejdau o) poowogybieu Joj yBnouy ssed
. Sing| je[duios |  JoW eloid SUIEN 19e]0id

% Peloid

‘AIg seoueg ubiseq pue Buluue|d dued “Bu3j i JUESISSY 'IoJOn "M SIABILL

sejepdn Juswaiosdwy [eyde) ZLAd :1103rdns

‘Ao

SJOUOISSIWOY UONEaIIoY pUe SHied JO pJeog ‘0l

2102 ‘ST ludy -31vd




¢ abed

"paIfEsu| Bujeq si eBeubis BuipuyAem eu] pojesul] %08 uiss0 | 8¥Z6v600L d11 - eBeubjg-AajjeA ulied
aue sufis uogeunsap ay) -suls ey Jo} saseq ey jo ||e pejiejsuy) sey subig S g
"WEd ABjjE/\ Ulad Ul ‘Syled e|qissaooe| %00 Buisso] | £16vSH0L Ajjioed woansay - LWOoRSEY Yied Asjjep uuad
pue puncufifeid ‘swooqsas Buipnjou; ‘eale |leqeseq sy soy ued ayis e Buidojeasqg
“pelEIsu) Buiaq si obeubis Buipukem ayL -pejEsul| %08 Buisso | £000910Z sjuewaraxdw] [eyowe Auaqr]
ase subis uopeunsop oy “subis ay Joj seseq ey Jo I papejsul sey subis Jeyg
‘weel polaid| %02 Busso | 1L06¥910Z Yed As|leA ueppiH
y¥eeu] Aaseas yim Buppiom s) wee) 10afoid A8]IBA USPPIH SU1 “LHOE Y1 :m_
8q [im esnoy uado 2jqnd 18414 "6 :o._ms_ Uo pjey sem aapiwwod Bupea)s 1si1
gj9|dwo) oeloid|  %S6 BuissoT | #088910Z UlgjuNno Uesudwy sARBN/NESINOYD SIooUel
%0 Jome | 10852104 SOpenby peoy UOIAIA
%0 Jome | 1L085210L Adui) Jooy '@ WooNSSY WiNSsn BuiAr] YeauD [E0US
"judy Ul dIN eAeY pinoys ‘sseoaud ujpequon|  %e JomeT [ Z0SGZL0Z wnasny Bu Jeald [eoys
_:n< Ul PIq pue SjusWNaop uoganisuco sje|dwo) ‘sjeidiios Aeans “ubisep uj %E Jome | Zi8riL0L Med Youpaiq Jedwey Ejleys
pajnoexs Buiaq Juswaaibe Jueynsuod| %0 RMET | 10ZZLI0Z PeOY S8W|OH JO jsem ebplg poy
‘pazyjeuy eue sueyd uawdojeasp |1 pioy Uo s 10afoid| %0 BMET | 8066107 1ejuo)) Buiddoys ebpug pey
m:.nwowv:m_ oy} 10} Aemuapun s Bujuue)d pue paAoLIal US3q SABY 5301 aY | 9%0¢ Jojmen Z0ZZsL0Z peoy sew|oH ? pecy ebpug pay
‘Renns oygnd Buidoeaed| %0 BMET | LOEEOIO0L ¥ed eze|d 10edsaid
aaunos Buipuny Jualegip wejoid swes| %0 some] | 50599102 | (ping ubiseqsucpeacuey SYAH Dpig UIWPY )Hed
g 8SBUd UO BUpUOM 10j0eU0D|  %SZ Jome | 50959102 =...=m|u_8nw=o=§o=om OVAH Bpig ujupy yuegd
aodwod Aeang| %S lome | 606+LL02 | 8seud ied Aueqn
"a}9|dwoD %06 S| Juewaoe|des BUYooy JOBNUCO JBpUN BUNCOY HIY| %02 Jome | ¥0SSLIOZ siieday] Jsjus) aInjeN apIsaye
"eul] diZ pue “sejiduquny 'spseoq BuAp ‘SInWny| %09 JameT | €08G.10L sepesBdn 1004 Mied eaci9
10} pajeidwod si8pup eseyaind "ajejdwod Apesu s| Bujuj| pue Jiedas jood
%0 e | LogsyiLoL UORIPPY/UOREAOUSY JSJuaD AJUNLUWIOD UOSILES)
dnuesp |ejusiuuoiiAuS pue sifedal jeuonippy pue seleWwe) Ajunseg %0g Jopme] LOSSY L0 sluBWBACIdW] Jejusy) APUNLIWD)) UoS|LIeS)
‘SmElg| Sje[dwion | JBW joalolg Suie 150104 |
% Beloig

"Ad S89lAIeg UBjseq pue Bujuueld yed “Bu3 i JUEIS|SSY ‘JajeDy M SIARI]
SISUOISSILIOD UOREaIIaY PUR Siied JO pJeog

sajepdn Jusweaoidw) eyded 2LA4 1103rdans

‘NOud
‘01

1102 ‘SZ ludy -31va




G abed

"8)ajdwoo suone|iejsul edid -ajeidwios %06 LUl kD] %19 Aeqaap | 22212002 Apnjg Aemuesis poomexe]
“ajeidwon 8] 2100 Aep) "ejeidwod s| Buuesd se)) ‘unBaq sey UORONISUCD a)eT
~ “eye|duioo suope|ejsu] adid -ejejauwiod %06 Joul ke[| %10 AeqieaQ | 1Z€12002 Aemueslis) poome)e
"ajejdwod si 8100 AelD) *ajajdwioo s| Bupesp eau] ‘unbeq sey UOKONSUOD oyE
"s1yB|| uewsSpad Joj pojielsul 8| INPUOD unbeq SeY UORONGSUSD| %0 AeqiaAD | 808v910Z BupyBi yeq esoo qooer
%@ J0 uopdaoxs M ejejdwod uononsuod|  %e6 | Aeqiend | Z0eLZioZ __lleseyd punoibike|d yieg osinoouc))
"Buipass jo uopdeoxe yim aj8|dwod uogonnsuas| %86 AequeaQ | 20212102 1 @seyd punoibie|d yied esincouc)
8)9|dwod %08 -  eleway|  %SS AeqieAQ | LOSL¥L0L Jwi|IBIL - 10308uU0s) Aueqiny "D Jo HaldS/eAd IO
uopongsuoy jiet] °ala|dwiod %08 - Z SjeLUs)|y UoRoNASUOD) jiel] “ejeidwod %0|
Bupe.5 pig eseq "ajajduico Guueaio sex pig esen ‘unbeq sey uogongsuon .
: 99idwod %08 - | Aewely| %S AeqienQ [ LOELYLOLD sAemAg DJUa0S D) Jo Juds/eAua WD
uogonasuoy jfel)l -aje|dwiod %06 - g 8jBWIS)Y UCRONISUCD [Bl] "sjoidwon %0}
_Buipesb pig aseg "eje|dwos Buuesp aan pi oseg ‘unBaq sey uogongsuon
991dWod %08 - | sjeweyy|  %SS AeqierQ | LOELYLOZ 1eJ ] AY) sesueyj Jo JuIds/eaua D
uojonnsuod el ejejdwsod %06 - Z ejewwalfy UORINAsUoY |iel) “8jaidwod 90|
BuipesB pig aseg “ejejdwos Bupes)o say pig @seg -unfeq sey uogonnsuo)
"auup 1euy je uado Jou HIM “Ae Aq pajejduiod oq [mIoelord| %Se BuISso] | c08¥rI0L }ed adeus] 1soMm
“ewig yeu Je uado Jou M “ABW Aq paje|dwoo aq moeloud| %98 1SS0 | £06tPLOL ealy seeT] YO 93ene] 1sop|
Sdays 1xeu oL Liim Wwee | Juswdojessq M Buppopm “uBjseq Ui| %S BuiSsol | ooerriol }ed alenbs uoBuysem
"sdajs pxou 3y Lpim wee | Judluidojessq \pm Buplop “ubseq Il %06 18807 | D06FPILOL ed azenbg uojbunysem
361S "Iudy Apes esfIeAPY %G ueso | #0€1L9102 PAIE JeASiy 0 1S iSO - [1B] yoes) Aajjod)
ubsep ul| %01 Buissol | 20z29r0Z sjuswaaciduw) sped ajbueu ]
“uojyBug JN PUB GE¥-| Usameq SDUIMEIP UORONIISUCO UG BUDHOM T980S|  %SZ Buisso | 5226007 SEV- 0) B0OL AN-AMId deeld [Boys
801 3N 0} uojyBug 3N wouy Juswubie pezjjeuy Bupjiom Jueynsuco ubjseq|
"uojyBug 3N PUE G| UseMIaq SBUIMEIP UOONIISUCS UG BUBPOM, 1998S|  %0Z | Bulsso] | 8ScOL0Z U001 aN-uoWBLE N-R96IN AMid Yeeu) eoys
L8041 3N 0 uolBug JN way }awubie pazieuy Buppom Juelnsuoco ubjseg
‘wes)oolold| %0z | BUISSO| | YOELELOZ lles] yeeid Adieag
Kajlep :ouuﬁa:__u_; uc_”__a; §1 wes) 1o8foid Yeau) Aoseeg ay | ___%_w youey uo
aq ||m esnoy 2liqnd 38U} "LI6 YDJEIN UO pjoy Sem sawiwod Buuee)s 1Sii-
1= o T "SEg| oje[duion | BN oeloid SUIeN 190j0ig|
% eloid

"NQ saoniag uBisaq pue Buluueld yed “Bug "N JUESISSY ‘I "M SIABI L
SIOUOISSILLOY UOIJealoay pue SHHe JOo pieog

sejepdn Jusweanoidw) [eydeD ZLA4 1103rans

2102 'ge ludy




g eBeq

uopeojidde Aed jeuy 1o} Buniepy] %56 sy 616v9L0.L ynoy |jeqayseg }ied edoms
yed yBnouly urew Jejem jo UBISSp 10} Ssedoud s| owiew Bujsodindey eyl| %S oW | S06v210Z }ed 8Seydingd eneld
W | 126VLI0L ieMm Buiuiejey - yied UOREAIBSO
%€ sy LL6FOLOL Spiayljed Yied Aaj|eA enjg e
‘senupuod Buisiespung
%€ oy LI6¥OL0L splRylied Jied AsjjeA enjg s
"uofepuno-] upide &9 yim Buinuguoo Bujsies pung
~ 0AOQY 865 JUNCOOY JUBID oW | SOEI8L0LD eBppg yInoS [IBJ] S0BIL Bnjg o]
aAoqe 8dg Sl | SOEL9LOZ ebpug LINog [1el] 80811 enid o]
UORONSUOY) Japun ey | SOEL9L0L ~abpug Pnos pel) aoel onid oM
aAoqe 209 ol | 20661101 suopses Ajunwwo) Al sesur)j
SAOqE 885 ol | 2086210 susples Ajunwiod A1) sesuey)
9A0qe 865 elid | Z0661L0L suapieg Ajuniwio) Ay sesuey|
anoqe aeg s | 20662102 suepJesg) Aunwiwo) A sesuey
aAoqe 898 S Z066.10L suep.eg) Aunwiwo) A)Y) sesuey|
UORONRSUOY) Japun) ol | Z066.102 suapJes Ajunuiuo) A)D sesuey|
oW | Li6kLIOL 3ed 80YUBA|
unoooy Jil| %0 oy | Z06¥2102 spield 08§y Yed obpoH
%05 SN | c06vZI0L SPieid SBSyIY YHed 6bpOH|
aeidwod| %001 Y 102S910L . [00d J8jUS) AjUNLIWS) deauD ysrug
Indu| 9)1qnd JoLpeb G} UORIIBCD YBNOIOGHEN LaM BUDHOM %G ey ZZ61910L Iies] Bugosuuo) Yed Bepy
ubissp Ul| %56 Aeqian0 | £0€19102 uosualx3 |IeJ] 84 Bjues
"9j21dwoo %z¢ S1398jold "unbeq Sey uoRoNNSucd aYe]| %09 AeqieAD | LOBYS10Z Axdui| puepe p-Aemusels) poomayeued unbuad
"pepIeme Jou sem juesb ol Jusweddns o} BUIPUN} Ovid BPIM| %0 AeqIeAQ | 90€181029 lles] Aemueals) poomeye|
MO “mapnal 38Sd LOAOW o} sueid Buvedaig ‘ejejdwiod %001 ubisep |jei)L
"PepsemE JoU SeM Jueib au) Eo___o_%:m o) Buipuny Jvid SPIM| %08 AeqierQ | 90€1910L llel] Aemuaals) poomeeT
smeg| Sje|dwioy | IBN | Joeloid SUIEN 190[0id
% weloid

"AIQ seopuag ubisaq pue Bujuueld yed “BuJ g JUBISISSY '10JeN "M SIAeLL

sajepdn eweacidw| epded /LA 103rANS
‘NOY4

‘0l
-31vd

SJSUOISS|WOY) UOREaIIaYy PUB SHIEJ JO preog
210¢ ‘Gz |udy




1 abed

2102 '0€ YyauBW Aq paje|dwiod 3q 0} psjoadxa S| UORONKSUCD) ‘UOKONASUGD U] %0E Buem | ¥0SSSioz 8Jjeday [00d }iBd 6dOMS
el d1S jeiepad WSS im pewweiBord s;1oelold 610Z] %0 uem | v02Zri0L adeosjeans snueAy souepuedspul pue 0ased
48qojoQ uj uiSeq o) PeINPAYJS S1 UORINASUOD 2 LOZ YoIBW ) ujBaq |im ubiseq)
‘U9 d1S [eiepad Wed i pewwelboid S| 1oefold 6102 %0 “Buem | v0zZzvioZ adedsjealg enusAy eouapuadepu] pue oesed
48q0J30 Ul ujBaq 0) paINPaYOS S1 UCRINLSUOD *2LOZ Yauel ul uiBeq |im ubisag
uojeaioay pue siled Aq pasoyuopN| %0 uep | 08280068 1S PUZ9 MN 03 62-| - 9ALQ SHUOHNEM MN
elo d1S [2iepaj Nog yim pewweibosd s)108joid 6102 %0 “Buep | oveZe00Z IIHd Aemyied spoo, ojdepy
49q0R0 ul uieq o) paNPeyos S| LoRoNNSUSD “2102 go4 Ul uibeq |jw uBisag|
ueis) d |1 S [ejopay Ng$ yum pawwesboud s11590ld 6L02| %01 BM | ObETlioL (801 0l Yig) Aewiied spoop ajdey
18qapdQ U} UIB3g 0} PBINPeYdS SI UCRINISUOD 2102 God Ul ujbaq [m ubiseq
Wei) dis [e/epa We$ yim pawwesboud s) pefoid '6L0Z| %01 Buem | ovezzioL (W80l o3 Y96) Aemyed spoo ejdepy
48qoj2Q ul uieq o} pa|Npeyds S} UoRONISUCD °£L0Z Go4 Ul uibeq mm uBisaq .
G102 |udy Wodas| %0z "GuEM | 2066210Z SJBULYSUT JO ET
jeuy puas o} yosena | ‘ejejdwod s upse) Juew|pag Aemuepun BuikeAing
"0D [euy uo Bupyiop “ejeidiuco Ajeguelsqns s| uogongsuon| %6 BUEM | 90ZZrL0L pesieju] ucyued g depul) J0pjLio) Ay souapuedepu]
"0Q [euy uo Buppop, “eje|dWod AJ[ERUEISqNS 5] UORONRSUOD|  %S6 Buepy | 902zv10LD Asdwij uondesiau uojues g esuspuadepu]
aje|dwoo sj uopongsuo)d|  %Ge “Buepy | ©088€E10L sajeday ulejuno yoolg uewjjom Ausy
"8jejdwoo sjuogongsuod]  %S6 | Buem | £088ELOL Jjedoy ujeunod yoojg uewjjom Kiuey]
2102 Anr Aq @10jdwiod eq |IIm PUB puE 710z qo- Ul ujbaq M uonasuod] %0 BUBM | £022910Z Jjeday YIEMSPIS JONPEIA PAIg PURID
%00} | Buem | LOE25I0Z 08SEd @ PIEAS|NOY || J8AES|D
%0 uep | 10662102 Jjeday JusunjuequIg nejnoys
%0 Buepy | L066Z10Z Jieday JusWjuequig nesnoyy
210z dy u) uBaq o} 51 uBiseq [BuCISSaj0Id UBISAp BW PARIS| %0 Buem | 102Z910Z uBiseq Aemped Lipselg
"a191dwoo 18foid yuep uj uibeq o) ainpeyds wajsAs oW | 60BYELOL ~ BupuBr pleulieg - Hed |IPMISIEM
BISLUEY) "MOjIO] 0} WSISAS RIOLIED UM auQ e Aq pojojdwod uwseisAs Runoeg .
aA0qe 895 sl | 20669101 uojsuedx3 107 Bupped Jejued epiepel]
uoRonAsucy Jopun s | Z0669L0L uojsuedx3 j07 Buppied Jejuad episielL
uBjsep uj ‘uenumyRIa| %S aw €0E1L102 Apnyg juB|d [emdeouo) (et doo yed edomg
~smElg| sjej0moy | IBN | Joeloig SUreN 306[01d|
% Baloid

"N SeolAles ubisaq pue Bujuueid yed “Bu3 "uq JuRISISSY ‘Jajeny M SIABIL
SUBUOISSILLIOY) UONEBIIDY pUe Siied JO pieog

sejepdn uawecidw) jeyded LA :11D3rans

-NOYA
‘Ol

2102 'S¢ ludy -31va




g abed

uaLep | €086110L Algjewen) uotun
usuepy | 806v.10L SjUSLWIBAOIAW| UORBICISEY S4B 1S001]
UaLEeM | 106VLLO0L punaibfeld ypeq uinBuag
ueuepm | 20001102 sesewe) AUNosg Yeg MSiABUOT
UBLEBAA | B06VSLOL lIEAA BUOIS B4 JOjSSaY
uauepy | 806PSLOL lieAR BUOYS Yl teissay|
ualepM | 60661102 aBpug seyBnp elwep-oALg Mug
ueuem | Zoezsioz |1 Bupped-iejued abejiiel [eanyng suppep - eonig
USleM | 0LBPLIOL Yed Asj[eA enig
1102 0¢€ Yd1eN Aq pajapdwiod aq 0} pejoadxe S UORONSUOD "UoRINASUCd Ul %0E Buem | v0SeSI0Z sijedey |00 Yied edoms
SNE)g| aj9|dwoD ] welold T SUIEN 198l0lg
% - | 08oid

sejepdn uswoaoidw |eyides 2 LA4 1103rans
"AI] sadiAIeg ubisaq pue Buluueld yed “Bug “JiQq JuelsISSY 'JaJey A SIABIL JNOUA
SJOUOISS|WOD UOREaIIdY pUR SHied JO pieog ‘0l

4102 ‘G¢ |udy -31va




| ebed

. ‘ubisep] %08 auiy | S088910.L suleday UEILUNOS S[UID JeH Waqieq
1desuos [euopippe Joj jesodoid Jwigns jm sjueynsuoy) -ubissp ajis pue uruNoy
au 0] suonesaye o} sjdesuos ubijsap [euopippe Bugsonbes papnou SJUDLUWON)
‘yes Aq PemajaB) udaq SeY Yomym Apnjs au JO Jeip peprUgNs LWES] JUBHNSUOY)
SJUBWN0P LUORINASUOD dn Bujys)uld %S Wiy | 616¥210L Med jeQ alym
pejejdwiod joeloid| %001 uelly | zzeriL0Z punciBAeid AliiqISSeadY Wed SiiH AueyiL|
]INC2OY JUBIS) %0 uelly | L0€1910.9 J0j99Uu0)) JBARY enig Yed adoms
UOJONASUOD JAJUNS) 0} J0eRUOD BUIpIEME pue piq 199lold| %G willy | ¥Z6¥9L0L ed paay y sawer
i palsidwo) 1efoid| %001 wly | #0eLLl0L IIPWOM 7§ Jleday [lel] 33910 uejpu|
. %0 wily | soeLzLol llel| Aemyued nesjnoyd pue Ge-|
"Buiine UOOW 8n|g O} papieme Sem PUB pIq | @SeUd| %G usjiy LOEIS10L uofidauLoy) ||Bl] UOIMA
—BuiiNeH UoOW SN|g O] PEPIEME SEM PUE PIq | 9SBUd| %G us|ly LOELSLOL UORIBULIOY) [B1] UOGIAIA
“BulineH UOOW SNig O} PapJEME SEM PUE pIq | 958Ud| %Sz wily | +0SL¥L0L Uof0euUo |IB1], Py UOIAIA O} "PY Poomd|bus|
“Buljne] UOJ onig O} popJeme Sem pue piq | 6seyd|  %G2 uelly | ¥OEL¥iOL }ed poomejbug|
. sbums|  %g uslly | 2066101 Yed apisAquno)
PUB 30U} SapN{oul YHOM "HOM 8y 10} 80US DSOIF YlM PaINOoXe LUSaq SeY Od
. ‘PeIoexs s)ed D) PUB SdOM veameq Juswaaiby|  %g uelly | Z06v.lL0L }ed [ipued
Ui UOJONISUOD o} 1eAu0D oy Buibeusu S 2Iigngd Ai sesue)|
‘PIq moj Jajung” Gujpuny [euogippe uo Bujyom pue piq 1oelodd| %Sz uslly | S0£1LZL0.D Ifel] JaAR anjg-ysar) ysng
"PIq moj Jelung” Bujpuny [eUORIPPE UG BUBUOM PUE PIq103jald]| %Sz uwlly | SoELZLol [lel] JaARy an|g-}ees) ysng
"PIq 0| Jejung” Buipuny jeuoRippe uo Bupliom pue piqoelaud| %oz uejly | SOELZLOZ lIelL JaAR] 8njg-yeald ysmg
PIq M0} JBJUNG) * Bujpuny [BUCHPPE UO BUPHOM PUE pIq paloud] %Sz uelly | SOELZI0Z Bes) JeARy onjg-jeau) ysnig
100foud yno Buisopy| %004 uelly | 80€1LZ10.9 Jojosuuoy Jiel) A9jjol]-IeAR anjg
noseyd| %09 Iy | goelzioL I1ed] Jo303uuc) [iel ] Asjjo) JeARy enig|
Joj sBuimBIp uoponisuoo uo Buppiom Buisaqa S YI0e SUN[ Jo YB0M U] }0S SBM
e6puq aug o | wewBeg "eBpuq ey Joj uewnNge pue Jeid JeJUad S LD BupHoM
uaaq aABY Asy) pue JOJDBAUCD B} SI UCHBABOXT JOYORIUPEY “UTJEj JueiS)
~ubjsep oy} 10j SWAISASUEL] UM JUSWoeeibe =w.@__=osm_ yoley wein| %0 wiy | 20€1910L 8d0MS-11] ABMUSIS) JOARY enig
UOENUISUOD) JSUNS) 0} J0BQUCO Buipieme pue piq 1o9old %S iy | €26¥910L Yed Jejsjuueq
SME)S| ojauiod | JBN | oelid GUIEN 198[01d|
% “Bajold

‘Al seoIeg ubisaq pue Buluueld yed “Bug -iiQ JuelSISSY ‘iojary “M SIARI|

sajepdn uswanoidw eyded A4 :1D3rdNS

SI9UOISSILUOY UORERIDY PUB SHJEJ JO pJeoyq 0l

1102 'se ludy




z ebeg

"sdaJ pooyioquBiou woy [eacdde Bupeme pue poyelp| %51 aulD LOEL9L0L || eoedS UBBIS aYS |00YDS Alejuswialg AoQoN Jeuuo]
8| uejd Jejsety “ufiisep uj si ueld Jejsep 7| eseyd uo pajejdwos uogonssuo))
| eseyd ul pajeidwod| %001 sulD L0B6S10L $88l] jied shqunjod
“Jauiuns asojeq ajedwioo %0E aulD | 806¥EL0L N @sByd - }ied snquinjod
€q 0} pejoadxe S| uogonNsUCY "pejonisuos Bujeq aue S)jem mau pue ‘sjeidwod
s1 Bupesb ‘aje|dwod %g6 SI uoRyowep 'Aesuapun S| UooNISUSd Z "sld
*LL/SLIZ UO djeweye ue se piq o} Jno ob [ 5ol %05 aulo 106¥9102 SJuBWOACIAW] Yt PUBRASID
8l Jou 1 Inq SIS0 aseyaund yYBnouuy pejisul aq | Jos Bums auy uey eoud
B & s1 ejonb Jj Juswidinbe 198 Guims Bujifeysu) Joj ajonb e BumeB uo m:.mBB
"Pasn 8q pnoys euo)s mol uo sbujeay %01 aulD vL6F.LIOL ¥ed punop ueipuj Jo jied ppng
Jiey) 186 0} sdes poaoqubileu yum Bugesw e GujBueue uo Bupuom Jng ssaibaid
uj ale subiisep Aleujw)Rud ‘peydeiBojoyd pue pemoja u aAeY sjoejn)
"£53001d 8y} HES O] W L)im BURBDIUNIIWOS Useq Sey Yejs %l auID 0885102 UOHEACUSY UIBJUNO JONJOA
"Sifedau Jeypny Lim 1SISSE 0] SaDIAISS |RUORIPPE a]euop 0} paaifie sjueynsuo)
HEIs syied woy sjuswiwion Jed pajeidwioo Bujeq siApnis Joyeia|  %gr auy | 10859107 EjoBled 0osEd oL
anos Guipuny jueayip yoaloud sweg %0 aullD £088910.1 sJleday] UJEJUNO4 Wopsal] Jo idg
dAoqe se awes| %02 eud | £088910.2 sJiedey UEJUNO wopeald Jo udg
SA0QE Sk Swes %02 aulo €088910. ulejuno wopsal] jo Juidg
"Hoda |euy 1o} palepisucd eq s}daouod [BUORIPPE %09 auln £0889102 UIEJUNO Wopeaild jo Juids
Pejsanbed pue pamalAel JEIS "IMONAs UEILNG} 8u) JO JoLju] oL ejebgsaay
0} uonioWSp BARDSISS papnjou) sisAjeuy Jodal Yeip papigns wes} Jueynsuon
“SUCHEASUST SIS[aUItd] 9507 oud | 10B8LLOZ U|5UNo 4 esioyees ajoll) 1ekaN
0} papaau Buipunj Buuiewal ey Jo YINW pesiel SeYy Sal)LULIoDd Buisrelpuny
JS3JUN|OA "UORESIUWPE UCKONASUCD BpiAcid pUB SJUBLINDOP LOKONASUOD
aj91dwiod 0} pepusiue Bujaq si Juslesibe i8)UBWINIOP UORONNSUOD L0 BuppOM
S| pUE "JOJORRUOD PUB LBIS SHIBd L)IM 18W WEa] JUB)NSUsY "aje|dwic si Apnyg
"dd 10} $80JAIS JO 6d0DS B 8)88ID 0} Psn 6UIeq S| LIIUM 'SUOREPLSILICIS] %E U0 10225104 uBiS Sjel] 0958 PUE POGMUT|
pue yaueesal ‘Apnys JiaL popIqns Auedwwios uogeIolSa [ejew puodeg
2102 Bupds U1 aUi0D M Jepuleuel pue ‘pejuerd ueaq aAey sean %06 aulD L088210L sjuaLeAcidw] Ulejuno jeuowa s ejybyel]
MaU ay) Jo Jsu14 Jdag ul pejueld asom sesselB |ejuswetuo pue s[ejuustad meN
smng| ojejawiey | BN | joelold SLIeN 198[01d
% jo0l0ig

"NQ seaweg ubisaq pue Buluueld sied “Bug i JuelsISSy Jajery M sines|

sejepdn jusweaoidw| [epded LLAd 1103raNs

SIBUOISSILIOY UO[IEIOaY pUE SHiied JO pieog ‘0l

1102 ‘6z {udy




¢ abed

"ssaooud ul yueweauBe oequoD “pejosies WEYNSUOD|  %E JIMET | LOEELL0Z Ue|d Jejsej yued Aejood]
'seseyd punoiBAe|d sunjny ssnosip o) ssAnUesaIdel] %G peld £062102 }ed POOMULIM
pooyJoqubieu pue ||y UewomjunoD UM Jop “ssauboud ul Bujuueld bm___E__m._n_t
210z Buuds peesiarc pue seale paqimsip 884 %G6 Peld | ZzZevvioZ }ed ejoucoy
Atesodwie) | J0joRAUOD “PS}IEISUI USSQ BABY YOI 8YIq PUE SJUSWINSU| [eOISNy
peld | Ze6vSL0Z sjuoweAcidw| exeT yied ozzelBi|
peid 9z6¥21L0Z sjueweacdwl| yed apeied - YANOM
peid L0B¥LLOL | Hd Med apesed - AWISPRIY YINOA UBGIf) D)
‘paledeud Buleq ale|  %Sg peld 0Z6¥L102 yed Jas]
Sjuswnoop 108JUOY “JSPPI] }S9Y PUE }SBMO) U} Sem UCHONISUOD Wolsny (% d
"UORNISUOD JO} BUIPUN DVid [BUORIPPE| %02 pe|d 0559101 Med wey||is
PESN_"0IpmS SHIOMPUET] LOY SJUSLUNOOP UOONLSUD Jog pig Bumairey
8ainos bujpuny Jussayp 1oefoid sweg pe|4 £061510.2 uonezjjiqels || eseyd - AeMusals) eAaxong
aoinos Buipunj jualegip 10aioud sweg peld £08+510. uogez||iqens | eseyd Aemuasug) edexong]|
pels | co6v8l0L abpjig Ueisepad AEmueais eAexong
saunos Buiplng juaiep efoid sweg| %0 Ped | L0£2Z10Z adeosjeans Aempeoig
"LLOZ Ae|  %0€ peid €0Z2Z¥10.L PY Wodisap 0} 1S Wi6E woy Aempeoug
Ul POS[UBADE aq |IIM SUB|d ‘Sjuewwndop uoyonysuod Buuedaud s| sueag pinog .
L10Z/Siy| %01 peid 126¥.10L Mied ejiA Joguy|
UO panss) sem dIN J0jequod se PSjasies useq sey Bugoenuon swmowd
"SjueweAcidun pansap %0 peld 0L86.10L SJUSLLIBAQICIL] POOMULT O)S¥
SSMIS|P 0} O£/8 UO JuspIsald Jajue) Bujwes siogng ‘sewieg we ] uum ey
‘peacidde| %G eulD 10625102 Med pooyoqubieN ezeld (pnos
s1 uBjsep Jaye ‘seAjeswey) 1sjoxd o)ejdwicd o) pooyloqybieu oy ned Aq
uo paxiom bBuj "
lﬂ._:o"ul | IBW ~ jooloid ouIeN 0dd
% ejoid

"N sedlnIag UBisaq pue Buluueld YJed “Bu3 NiQ WUEIS|SSY ‘OO “M SIABIL

sajepdn Juswecidw [exded ZLA4 1103rans

INOHA
m._aco_wm_EOO co_“_.mo._umm pue mv_._mn_ JO pJjeog 0L
21102 ‘SZ ludy 31lva




¥ obed

"PoIIEIsU] Bujeq s| sBeubis Buipuifem oi L peilElsul] %08 uISSo | a¥26¥6007 dLL - eBeuBig-AaeA uueg
ue subijs uoneugsep ay) "subjs ey 1o} seseq ay) JO |Ie pajjeisu) sey subis Jejg
) “Wed A8llBA UUsd ur syIed o|q1sse00e| %08 uissol | eL6¥510L Aoe ] Woanssy - WooLsey Yed Ad|[eA Uuad
pue punoiBAejd ‘swoonsas Bujphjow ‘eale [jegeseq oL Joj ue|d a)s e Buidojasq
"pejiesul Bujeq si obeub(s BuipuyAem U] -peieIsul| %08 BuissoY | 0009102 sjuawaaaidwi jeuowoiy Aeqr
eJe subis uogeunsep ay) -subls auy Joj seseq oL Jo |[e pajjejsul sey subig Je)g
o ‘wea) oolold| %02 Buissol | 106r910Z Med AsjjeA ueppiH
yeer) Aareeg Uum Bupiiom s Wea) joofaid AS|IEA USPPIH SUL "WIOE YOIBI UO
aq (| esnoy uado aliqnd Jsu14 ‘YIS YOUBH UO Py SEM SaJLILLCD fBupea)s jsu4
ajejdwoD 0aloid|  %S6 | Puisso | v088910Z UIEJUNO LRDUBWY SAlEN/NEBSINOYD) Siodouel]
%0 Jome] | 10562102 soflenby PEOY UOIIA
%0 el | 108S.10Z Aldw] Jooy %@ Woonsey umesnyy BUIA[] Year) [eoys
“Judy Ul dIN dABY pnoys "sseocud uj 1penuog) %E lome | Z0SSZ1L0L wnosny BulAr year) |eoys
“ludy U] pIq PUE SIUSLINIOP UORSNSUCD EjojduioD -ejojdwod ASAING -UBISp uj %E e | zZieviLoL Hed youelq Jadwey| eleys
painoexe Bureq JueweeuBie jueynsucy| %0 BMET | L0ZZZ10Z PeOY SSWIOH JO jsam abpug pay
‘pazijeuy ase sueid JuswdoRASp IR Pjoy uo $| }oeloid %0 Jome | 80662102 seue) Buiddoys ebpug pey
“Burdeaspue| oy 10} AEmiapun s| BUIULEId PUE PoAOLR ueaqareyseanayl| %oe lowe1 | Z02z5102 PEOY SaW|OH P peoy abpug pey
"Aeains aygnd Buidojessd| %0 BWeT | L08e910L Yed ezeld wadsald
e2unos Bujpuny Jusiayp 159(0:d sweg %0 lome] | g0s9910L | (Pung uBjseq)suoneaouey SvAH Bpig UlwpyY Sied
§ 8seyd U0 BUPjIom J0J0BIUCD|  %G. Bme | 6095910 | (pnng ubise()suopesousy JVAH Bpig UIWPY JEg
ajepdwod AsAing %S Bime | 606¢.102 | esBYd Yed Auaqn)
"e39|dwo %08 Si jusweoeldel Buyooy oBRUCS Jopun BUYSOT Wr| %0z Jome | $0982102 SIIeCTY Jejua) aunjeEN episae
"aul| diz pue "se|te.quny "spieoq Bunp ‘eImiWng| %06 Jome | £0S6/102 sapeiBdn j00d Yed eacis
10} pajeduwiod s1epIO aseyoing “sjeidwod Auesu si 6uju)) pue Jjedel joog
%0 lemet | L0SSPLOZ uoRIPPY/UOREACUDY Jajuey) AJUNLILLOY) UOS|LIeE)
dnueeo |ejusluUOIjAUS puE siiedel [EUOHIPPY PUE SEJSLUBY) AJUNDag %08 Jame] LOSSFLOL Sjusweaaidw) Jaued Aunwiwol) Uosiues)
omEg| Se(awos | JBW | 19eleid SuleN §o8l0ld
% wefoig

"N seapag ubiseq pue Bujuuelq yed “Bu3 “AQ JUBISISSY “JOJOD "M SIABI
SJOUOISSIWOY UOREaIIBY PUE SHIEJ JO pIEog

sejepdn juswsaaoudw) jeyden Z LA :103raNS

2102 'SZ ludy




g obeg

"ejejdwiod suope|iesu| adid -ajeidwod %06 Jsul AeD] %19 AequeaQ | 1Z€12002 Apmig Aemusais) poomae
-ajajdwod sj 2100 AelD) -8je|dwos S| Bupesp aal 1 _‘unfiaq SEY UORINYSUOD ayer
"ajeidutod suope|lejsul odid -ayeidwion %06 seul AeD| %19 Aeqieap | Zzelzo00Z Aemuseid) poomeye]
"8)e|duwiod si 9100 Aet) aj8|dwoo sj Buuea sal] “unBaq sey uonaNRSUOD aye
"S)yBy ueLysapad i0f pojEIsul S INPUCD UnBoq SB UORONTSU0D| %0 AeqieAD | 806v910L ~ BupyBi yed esoo qooer
. "Bujpass Jo uopdeoxe LM eje|dwicd Uo uop| %8s Aeqisr0 | ZOELZ 101 Il esRYd punoiBAeid Yied 6noouo)
{.ﬂ_ﬂ” Jo uopdsoxe %E ajeiduwco SEE:B:S %86 | ABQIBAQ | ZOELLLOL I 9seyd punaibAe|d yed esincauo))
9J9|dwoa %08 - | ejewaly|  %ss AeqionD | 10ELYLOL | IeLL - 10358uUcD ALeqingg ‘D) JO AIAS/eAa D
uogongsuo) |iesl “ejejdwan %06 - Z Sjewe)|y UORINASUOD [Iel] "ejo|dwod %0|
Buipes pig oseg “ejejdwoo Buues)o aay Pig aseg ‘"unbeq sey uogongsuo)
8jojdwod %08 - | ewsly| %S AeqienD | LOELYLOLD SAeMAg djuesg D) Jo uudsieanq Wio
uofongsuo) el “ejaidwod %06 - Z S)ewws)|y UORONNSUOS [lel) “Sjojdwod %Q)
BujpesB pig eseq “ae|dwoo Bupesp aan | Pig 9seg _-unbaq sey uogongsuoy
: aleldwod %08 - | sjewayy|  %es AeqUeAD | LOELYLOZ sl Auo sesuey jo yudseaua Yno
uoRoNAsUO) el a19|dwiod %06 - Z SjeLa)y uolongsuoy) jies] e)ejduiod %01
Buipesb pig aseg "ajejdwoo Buuealo 631 pig oseg ‘unBaq sey :o:u:amcooﬁ
“SWR jeys 12 uado Jou M “Ael Aq pejaidwiad aq M 0alaud| %Sz Bueso] | e06vri0L Med soelie| 1S9
‘swig jey) Je uado Jou [IIM "Aep Aq pejejdwioo aq pmioefold]  %ge 1ss0 | €06¥¥10L ROJY YseeT]| JO a0RLIOL JSOM
"sdels xeu sy Lyim Wes ] yuswwdojeas( s_ﬁa unyop “uBissq ulf %S m@&o._ 906v¥10Z Med aJenbs =3m=|.|eum_,_m§>
"sdejs 1xau aij) (M Wes ) yuewdojoraq LM Buppops "uBiseq ul| %06 uisso | 908¥YLOL }ied auenbg uojbulyse
3818 udy Apes asqreapy %S BUISSOT | ¥0E1910Z PAIE JOASW 1 1S LG9 - l1Bd | yort) Asjjou]
uBisep ul| %01 BuiSsoT | z022910L sjeWaAcdl sped ejbuel]
“uopjBug IN PUE GEY-| UGSMIBq SDUIMEIP UCROMISUGO UO BUDHOM, ealg|  %S. Busso | 892Z600L SE¥-1 01 YO0 IN-AMyd deeu) [eoys
W80 3N 0) uolybug N wouy E@FM_WEN_E Buppiom yumynsuoo ubiissg
"UoYbLE 3N pue Gei-| usampeq sBuimesp uojongsucd uo Buppopy 1sens|  %0Z | Duissol | 8SEZ0L0Z R0 L IN-uoBlIg NP96IN AMid Nee1d [eoys
{801 3N 93 uoiybug IN wol Juswubije pazijeuy Bupuom Jueynsuco ubiseq
"wes} so_en__ %02 GuissoT | v0SLEI0L lles | yaau) Aoleag
Asife/ usppiH LM Bupjiom s| Wes) aloud ¥eeuD) AaIees oyl "YI0E YAB uo
89 Jjwm asnoy usdo 21jgnd 18114 "Y1§ YOUBW UO pjoy SEM Sa)j|LLLIOD Buueals Jsu4
o smE)S| eeduoy | JIBjy yoofold ey Jo0[oid
% Baloig

"NIg seoieg ubisa(q pue Buluueld yed “6u3g “Iiq JUB)S|SSY ‘Jojeny *M SIABIL
SJOUOISSILLOY UO[IEaI0aY PUE SHIBY JO pieog

sajepdn Juswoaacudw) [eydeD ZLAd 11D3rans

‘WOH4
-0l

1102 'ST |udy 3iva




9 abied

uopeoydde Ked jeuy 1o} Guplem| %<6 ol | 616¥910L | Hno) jeqeysey Jied edoms
ied ybnaily ujew sajem Jo ubisep o} sseoo.d s owewl Busodindey oUL| %G ol | S06v.10Z 3ed aseyoind ajjejd
Y] L26YLLOZ M Buujeley - yed UOREAISSq0
%€ sy LLBYOLOZ SpiRUlfed Yied Aej[eA an|g Sfr
‘senupuod Suisieipung
%E G LL6¥9L0L spleylied yied Aej|eA anjg e
“uogepunoy c_v_n_MI_wo s Bulnuguod Buisiel pundy
3A0QY 89S JUNCJ0Y JUBID oW | SOEL9L0ZD “abpug YiNoS peJ] 8oel] enjg opr
aAoqe aeg s | s0e19L0Z abpug (Anog [1el} eJel1 anig e[
UOROMNISUOY I8pun ey | SOEL9LOZ abpug yinog |les) aoel| enig oM
8A0QE 865 SR | 2066L10Z suepIeg Apunuiwio) Ay sesuey]
anoqe 295 e | 20662101 suapJes) Ajununuo)) A sesue)
8A0QE 885 o | Z066LL02 suepJes Ajunwiio) AjjY) sesuey
SAOQE 995 Y] 20662101 suapJen Ajunwiwioy) Ay sesuey
BAOQE 869 ol Z0B86.L10.L suepieg Ajunwiwio) Aj) sesuey
UORONISUOY) JBpUN ey | Zos62102 suepJes AJunuxuod) A sesuey
Sl LiBkLl0L 3ed S0yuBA|
Wnodooy Juf %0 SR | Zoekil0Z Spield SRRV Yed abpon
%05 CTTTHY] zoekZ10L | Spleld S09|ylY Yed SbpoH|
geidwon| %001 EY) 1025910 [00d Jajue) Ajuniuwiod yeald ysrug
Indu| oqnd Jeye o) uopec) yBnoioquel M Buppom| %9 e | ZZ6roLoL iiel | Bugoeuliod yed 1oy
. ubisep ul| %96 AeqieaQ | £0€1910Z uoisuelxd ||el] 8] Bjues
‘aje|dwod %z¢ i 1oelald "unbeq sey uoponysuco SXE|  %0G AeqioaD | LOBYGLOL AW} puepe-ABMUSAIS) POOMBNE e UinBuad
"PApIEME J0U Sem JBIb ay Juswaiddns o) BUPUN Ovid OPIM| %0 AeqiaAQ | 90€191029 led ] ABMUBBIS) pooMaNeE
A Mol 39sd LOQOW 10} sueid Buuedald "eje|dwod %00} ubisep jel|
R "PSPIEME JOU SEM quw ay .Eso_&_“_m o) Buipuny wsn_ SpIM|  %0S . | AeqiaAD | 90EL910L lIe] ABMUSRIE) POOMIYE
1D "MelAl 39Sd 1 OQo Joj sueld Suuedald "ejojdwod 9,001 uBisep pes)
= B 10N yooloid SUIeN 196[0id|
% eloid

"AIg sealnag ubisaq pue Bujuueld yued “Buz "I JUBISISSY JSJON “M SIARIL

sajepdn ewarcsdw) leydeDd LLA4 (103rdns

INONHA
m..m:o_mw_EOO co_umw._umm_ pue mv_._wn_ mo pJeog _O 13
2102 ‘G2 ludy 31va




1 ebegq

4102 ‘0g yare Aq psjeidwiod eq o} pejoadxe §) UORONASUOD "UCKONASUGD U] %08 Buepy | +0SSS10Z sJjeday (00d Yied adomg
eI dIS [elepad WG$ WM powwesBoid s13109j0id 6102] %0 Buem | vozzrioL odeosieans enusay esuopuedepu) pue oesed

4240120 Ul uiBaq 0) peINpeyos S} LORINIISUOD *Z1L0Z Yosely ul uiBaq jm ubjseq
UBID d1S [eepad WSS L pawwesboud s|100fold 6L02] %0 uem | ¥0ZZrioz 2de0gjeallS SNUSAY eouspuodapu] pue oased

48q0j00 Ut uifiaq 0} pajNpeyds sj LOKINASUOY *210Z YIEW Ul uiBeq M uBisag
Uoealosy pue syped Aq pelojuow{ %0 | Duemy | 092s0068 IS PUZ9 MN ©} 6Z-1 - SALIQ SILICYNEA MN
Wein diIs [eiepad We$ Yum pawweiBoud si 1oefold 6102 %0 “Buepy | OvEZB00Z IIHd Aemyieq spoopn aidepy

189030 uj uiBieq o} pejnpayos sj uogONSUOD °£1L0Z Ged Ul uiBaq m ubiseq
Weln dig [elepad We$ Uim pawweiboid S| oejold 6102] %01 Buem | o¥ECZIOL (\eoi o1 pge) Aesped spoop ejdeyy

18qooQ u) uiBog 0} PaINPeYs S1 UORONISUCD °/10Z G4 Ul uibeq [im ubiseq
WERID d IS [esepe- N9$ upm pawweiBod s1308joid '610Z] %0l Guep\ | ovEZZi0Z {801 91 W96} Aemyed spoop eidepy

4940100 U] uiBaq 0} pejnpayYs S1 UORINISUOD °210Z qed u) uiBaq |im ubisaq
610z ludy uodai| %0z Buem | Z0662HOL SISULYSUS JO O)E]

[EUl pues 0} Yoo | ena ) ‘ejejdwod ) Bupsa) Juewipes "Aemsepun Bujheaing
"0 [Eul o BupoM “aje[dwiod AllBqUEISGNS S| LOROTSUOD| %56 “Buem | 902zv10Z pesieiu] ucjueg B Gapul) 10pHIoD SAY edsuapuedepu|
"00 feuy uo Buppop "516|duiod AlepuEISqns S| UOKONASUOS] %56 eM | 902Zr1029 Aidw| Uoj}dasieju| uojueg % souepuadepu]
ejoidwoo sj uopdngsuod|  %ge M | £088€102 sJjede}y ufEuNo Yyoolg uewjop KiueH
"djoidwiod sj uogonasuod| ™ %58 ‘BuBM | £088EI0L sneday U[BUNo yoojg uew|iopm AlusH
210z AInp Aq s30idwod q | PUB PUE 710z qed U] UiBaq (M URONISUoD| %0 “Buep | £022910Z Heday Y[EMSPIS 1ONPBIA PAlF puels)
%001 BM | 1025102 03SEd '§ pueAS|NOg || JOAEDI)
%0 BUBM | LOBBZIOL Jjedey Jusunjuequi3 nesinoy;)
%0 uem | 10662102 Jiedoy Jusunjuequiy nesnoyd
"L10¢Z ludy uj uibaq o} sj ubjseq |eudissejoid ubisep el PoReIeS| %0 Buem | 10zz9t0Z uBisaq Aemyed gipreug
6191w Josjoid yore ul uibaq o} ejnpeyds wasAs oW | 606VELOZ BupyBrT prouiied - Wed IPvmlE M

BJdule] "MoJ|0} 0} WejSAS Biswied LM suQ ye Aq pajejduiod weysAs Aunoes
8AOQE 895 ol | 2066910Z uojsuedx3 30 Bunired Jeyue) apisjiel] |
UORONSUOD Jopun oy | Z06691L0Z uojsuedx3 107 Buppied Jejue) epispel]
ubisop uj ‘uenum yeiq| %S Y] €0ELL10L Apnig jueld |emdesuod el dooT speq edoms
T smE)S| Sjejduioy | iDm | 199l0ig SUWEN 190101

. % 30id

"AiQ seoiMieg ubiseq pue Buluueld yued “Bug "I JUBISISSY ‘ISJOry “AA SIABLL

sajepdn usweancidw [euden ZLAH :103rans

-WOXd
SISUOISSIWOD UOREDIISY PUB SR JO pieog Holl
2102 6T ludy -31va




g ofed

ualepy | £0686.10L Arejowe)) uojun

uauep | 806¥210L SjueLUBAQIdLL| UOHEIOISOY BYET 1SO0LL

uauepm | L06YLIOL punaibfe|dq sued uinbueq

uaueps | 20002102 selele) Aunoes yied maIABuo

uoueps | 806¥5102 HEAA 8U0}S iR Ja|sso)y

uaueps | 80646102 JIEM SU0)S Mied Jojsse)

uaueps | 60664104 ~ ebpug seybBnH eWeN-2ALQ MYE

uauep | Z0€ZSL0Z [ Bubied-iejue?) obejlieH [eINynD SUPREM - 9onig

Uaep - | 0L6FLL0L jed AsjleA snig

4102 "0€ Y2IEW Aq pejs|dwicd aq 0} pejoadxe ) UORINASLOD UORONNSUCO Ul| %0 Buem | ¥0S9910Z suedey 100 }Bd edoms
SMEIG| Sje(dlion | IBN | Polold “SWIeN 19910id

% ye[oid

ssjepdn Jusweacidw) [eydes 2144 11D3raNS
"NIQ $80iAJaS UBsaQ pue Buuueld sied “Bug g Juelsissy Uejen] M SBIL NON4
SISUO|SSIWOD UOIIEaII9Y pUB SHied JO pieog o]l

2102 'Sg udy -31va




Intra-Departmental Communication

Date: April 22, 2017
To: Board of Parks and Recreation Commissioners
From: Heidi Downer, Marketing & Events

Subject: Marketing Report

Weekly Report
Fountain Day

Upcoming Events

April 22, 10 a.m.- 2 p.m.: Spring Discover Day, Kansas City North, Tony Aguirre and Southeast
Community Centers

April 28, 10 a.m.~2 p.m.: Health, Fitness and Safety Fair, Hillcrest Community Center

May 1: Melanoma Monday, JC Nichols Fountain

May 5-13: KC Plein Air Festival, Penn Valley Park and Union Cemetery

May 6, 3-7 p.m.: The Derby Party, Kansas City Museum

May 13: Dig Day, Citywide

May 13, 10 a.m.-6 p.m.: Kansas City Train Day Celebration, KCNRR in Frank Vaydik Park
May 13: Downtown Open Urban Golf Tournament, Washington Square Park

Previous Events
April 8, 1-3 p.m.: Bone-Anza, Waggin’ Trail Dog Park
April 12, 5-7 p.m.: Fountain Day, The Concourse

te §.0r
Page Views: 112,895
New Visitors: 32,431 (73.4%)
Returning Visitors: 11,724 (26.6%)
Most Visited: Shelter Reservations, Line Creek, Parks, Loose Park, Facilities - Tist
Traffic Sources:
30,185 — Search Tool
9,145 - Direct
2,988 - Referring Site (kemo.gov, kckidsfuri, thespringske)
1,833 from social media *This is a 100% increase from last month (Feb)



Supeew pseog ...:u_.-
Bupeey pieog uopeEp 00Z o3 jo spuspy "wdy .!z&..ﬂiam..i preons
-inoj4 wnosny oM—wdog:z) ang wrd geizy
6z 8z Lz 92 sT ve €z
ONILIaN
quvod ON
F + [+ 4 0z ] ] L) ]
UINUNO,} 251000, —KHow
qni) esnepddy—uowun | 22 g£:¢ doq umwmmo,y ‘wdj—
-3y pivog Jo)oesq jo pivog . .....w..
SHUINL WBIEIS WD |,y vownmog go9g—s suvpmory doypI0,4, preos
BUROSN | — 3y sowmg smmigy-wrogssTy ag wd o7y
Sl vi pieog Wbiueyg wrrdg ¢ . (48 (7 oL 6
1 Jepp PHOM up Anjug ONILIAN
"$°N 8y} o UORBIOWBWIWOY Ivoa ON
[ejuusjua)- "w-d) "w "eg
8 L 9 s L 4 €




Al

A x gl
giigla el |
BiTEEay &

¥

a. .nw
H 2
Pt
L m ;

ONILIANW | Aeq |epowey
GUVOE ON | Aepiion A3
LE 1] 4 6< e
sm
R prwog wrd g
doysyiop preog
g wrd ogszy
N oz oz vz £Z F44 % 4
sae)
-snuj] jo pieog ONILLIIN
Fepowow Kue auvosa ON
-qI7 "wreggsLy
. o1 | mn 9l (] i
Bupeayy nuAY yapivog
g mopah §I.Em..ﬂw 2y
) pieo R pavog wrd 7
Unoj wWnesnpy SIUD ] pvYT dogsipiop, piuog
oM ‘urdotizL | py-wogeyy a1y rd gz
. - Ll oL 6 8 L|
ONILIAN
auvoa ON _

anfg,



(T4

wooy piuog
uewpeayg—Huy
ooy pieog By
Je)g "wuges

-

amuzaY Yypapivog
0998—s oy
— N suuvg
W/ DN-"HVOE T
| 47

valL
- Bupesw pivog
uopepunogy

sujejuno jo A5

L




e

iz

£

14

INMUIAY §§| I

Bupoew pieog 0998 —s umypnoy

sneayl wbjueg
—0E:L Eb

— Sy Uy g
MOLE/DN - WrvgETT

Lk

Supagy pvog wrd 7
doqryso gy
Pasog g wrd ggezy
9 1

ONILIIN
aNvoa ON
L4




daitad | ) | i
it |
R Sunaop pavog wrd g
ﬁm. { doysyaop,
pavog a1g wrd gy |
i o bE | o¢ zz 8z 1z
7 7 ONILLIIN
9Z | Sz vz £z auvos ON %4 0z
|
7 Supapy pawog wrd 7
doysysopm
| pavog aig urd gg:zy
_ .
i L i N 8t | o 9 Sk v g +_n.. L
I - — | | - —— |
_
(RS INNIAY FIospivogy -
a3 7 SURSOW PIRORL | gggp—s, umypmopy ONLLIIIN b
e - WSPmS wrepg:, —Spq suampng ivOod ON foe
7 SIVA/IN-rvgE:TT f
r 41 7 b ol oL 8 L 9
_ | | 4
ONLLIIN
auvos ON
-] v £ z i b

L) |2C nqy, PRI sng, UopN uwng




